
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

 

 

 
 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 

AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

MONDAY, AUGUST 1, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS  
 

WATCH THE MEETING:   
 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 
 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 
 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON: 
 
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL: 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting.  

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 
 
NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE: Pursuant to Adopted Resolution No. 8098 by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
effective January 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies may participate via teleconference and/or video 
in Accordance with Government Code Section 54953 as permitted under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 

 
 

 
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 1 of 212

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – August 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 6

 

 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING: 
 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 
 

 

 Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
 Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 
 Passcode:  924965 
 

 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 

PRESENTATIONS  
 
A. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION HONORING VIOLETA ESCAMILLA QUINTERO 

FOR HER MANY YEARS TEACHING MUSIC TO SENIORS AT THE LAS PALMAS SENIOR CLUB  
 

B. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION HONORING SUZANNE LLAMAS FOR HER 
SERVICE AS A COMMISSIONER ON THE EDUCATION COMMISSION 
 

C. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION AND PRESENTATION OF RECOGNITION 
PLAQUES TO ROBERT ORDELHEIDE, ED MICHEL, HOLLY SCOTT AND WARREN MAURAN FOR 
THEIR VOLUNTEER SERVICES TO THE COMMUNITY 
  

 

DECORUM AND ORDER 
 

The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 212



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – August 1, 2022 
Page 3 of 6

 

 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 
 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record.  
 

Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES FOR THE JULY 5, 2022 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 

Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-081 approving the Warrant 
Register. 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 
MEETINGS FOR THE PERIOD OF AUGUST 13, 2022 TO SEPTEMBER 11, 2022, OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO’S LEGISLATIVE BODIES IN COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54953(E) AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361  

 

Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8170 re-authorizing remote 
teleconference meetings for the period of August 13, 2022 to September 11, 2022, of the City 
of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with Government Code Section 54953(E) 
and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 

 

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A REQUEST FROM KIDNEYS QUEST FOUNDATION TO USE 
THE CITY SEAL TO CO-SPONSOR THE 2022 HEALTH AND WELLNESS FAMILY FESTIVAL  
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Approve a request from Kidneys Quest Foundation to use the City Seal to co-sponsor the 
Kidneys Quest Foundations 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to approve co-sponsorship of future Health and Wellness 
Events organized by Kidneys Quest Foundation.  

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 3 of 212

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – August 1, 2022 
Page 4 of 6

 

 

5) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT PROJECT COMPLETION AND AUTHORIZE THE RECORDATION 
OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE PICO STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, JOB NO. 
7610, PLAN NO. P-731 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Accept the improvements as constructed by Hardy & Harper, Inc., and consider the work 
completed; 

 
b. Authorize the issuance and filing of the “Notice of Completion” with the Los Angeles 

County Office of the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk; and 
 
c. Authorize the release of the five percent retention amount ($25,093.17) after the 35-day 

lien period from the date the Notice of Completion is recorded. 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR CITY TRAFFIC 
ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH TOM BROHARD AND ASSOCIATES  
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 2091) with Tom Brohard and 
Associates, in an amount not to exceed the annual City Council approved budgeted 
expenditure for City Traffic Engineering Services for a three-year term, with a City option 
to renew for two additional years; and 

  
b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement and related documents. 
 

7) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE RESERVOIR 2A/5 SITE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, PLAN NO. P-738 AND JOB SPECIFICATIONS JOB NO. 7611 
 
Recommend that the City Council:  
 
a. Accept the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $364,125 from FS Contractors, Inc. for 

construction of these improvements;  
 

b. Approve a construction contract with FS Contractors, Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed 
$364,125 (Contract No. 2092);  
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute change orders for an amount not-to-exceed 10% 
of the contract amount, or $36,413, to cover costs of unforeseen conditions and execute 
all related documents;  
 

d. Adopt Resolution No. 8171 to approve amending Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Capital 
Improvement Budget by $400,538 from the Water Enterprise Reserve Balance for the 
Well 2A, Well 3, and Lower Reservoir Upgrades Budget; and 
 

e. Approve the Notice of Exemption for the construction of the Reservoir 2A/5 Site 
Improvements Project and direct the City Clerk to file it with the Los Angeles County 
Recorder’s Office. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 4 of 212



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – August 1, 2022 
Page 5 of 6

PUBLIC HEARING 

8) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE, AND APPROVING AN
ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT WITH WILLDAN ENERGY SOLUTIONS FOR THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF CERTAIN ENERGY RELATED IMPROVEMENTS AT CITY FACILITIES
(THIS ITEM HAS BEEN CONTINUED TO A DATE UNCERTAIN)

9) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT
MAP NO. 2022-001 FOR A PROPOSED SUBDIVISION OF A 9.29-ACRE PARCEL DIVIDED INTO
FIVE PARCELS FOR INDIVIDUAL OWNERSHIP IN THE HOME DEPOT/TARGET SHOPPING
CENTER AT 12920 FOOTHILL BOULEVARD, ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 2514-001-062

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Conduct a Public Hearing; and

b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8172 approving Tentative Tract Map No.
2022-001, for a proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel divided into five Parcels for
Individual Ownership in the Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill
Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062, subject to the Conditions of Approval
included as Exhibit “A” to the resolution.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

10) RECEIVE AND FILE AN UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS

Recommend that the City Council receive and file an update related to the City’s COVID-19
efforts, including, but not limited to the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement;
education and outreach efforts; financial assistance programs and the pursuit of funding
opportunities; COVID-19 related policy initiatives; and related recommendations, as
appropriate.

11) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO DESIGNATE A VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE(S)
FOR THE 2022 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Designate a voting Delegate for the League of California Cities 2022 Annual Conference
and Expo;

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 5 of 212



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – August 1, 2022 
Page 6 of 6

 

 

b. Designate up to two Alternate Voting Delegate(s) who may vote in the event that the 
designated Delegate is unable to serve in that capacity; and 
  

c. Authorize the City Clerk to execute and submit the 2022 Annual Conference Voting 
Delegate/Alternate Form to the League. 

 

12) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO DEVELOP A LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN FOR 
MONOLINGUAL, SPANISH-SPEAKING RESIDENTS 

 

This item was agendized by Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez. 
 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 

 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
________________________________________ 

Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted:  July 28, 2022 (5:00 p.m.)  

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 6 of 212

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 7 of 212



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 8 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 9 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 10 of 212



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
JULY 5, 2022 – 5:00 P.M.  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL   
 
Mayor Mendoza called the special meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Mary Mendoza (via teleconference), Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco 
and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Cindy Montañez (via teleconference), and 
Celeste Rodriguez (arrived at 5:55 p.m.) 

 
Staff:  City Manager Nick Kimball and Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve the 
agenda.  Motion carried with Councilmember Rodriguez absent.  
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS - WRITTEN/ORAL None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (5:04 P.M.)  
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez arrived directly into Closed Session for consideration of Item A of the 
special meeting agenda. 
 
  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 11 of 212



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – JULY 5, 2022 
Page 2 
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
  

Designated City Negotiators:  
City Manager Nick Kimball 

Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 
 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
 
RECONVENE/REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of the Closed 
Session meeting held on July 5, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City Council adjourned the special meeting at 6:18 p.m. to the regular meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of July 5, 2022, Special 
Meeting, as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 12 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 13 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 14 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  August 1, 2022    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-081 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 22-081, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 15 of 212



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-081 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND / WARRANT REGISTER NO. 22-081 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That the Payment Demand/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been 
duly audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts 
as shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2. That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to 
the City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 1st day of August, 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 16 of 212



RES. NO. 22-081 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-081 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
1st day of August, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of August, 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 17 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 18 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 19 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 20 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 21 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 22 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 23 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 24 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 25 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 26 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 27 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 28 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 29 of 212



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 30 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081SPECIAL CHECKS

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 31 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

SPECIAL CHECKS

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 32 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

SPECIAL CHECK

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 33 of 212



SPECIAL CHECK
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 34 of 212



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-081

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 35 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 36 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 37 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 38 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference 

Meetings for the Period of August 13, 2022 to September 11, 2022, of the City of 
San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance with Government Code Section 
54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8170 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of August 13, 2022 to  
September 11, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with 
Government Code (GC) Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill 361. 

BACKGROUND:  
 
1. On October 4, 2021, the City Council was presented with an agenda report regarding 

adopting a resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings of the City of San 
Fernando’s Legislative Bodies under the provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 361 (Attachment 
“B”), which was signed into law on September 17, 2021.  The City Council did not adopt the 
resolution, thereby reverting all legislative body meetings to comply with all Ralph M. Brown 
Act (Brown Act) requirements for public meetings.  

 
2. On January 12, 2022, due to the surge of the Omicron variant of the COVID-19 virus, the City 

Council adopted Resolution No. 8089 to authorize remote teleconference meetings of the 
City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 
days, effective January 12, 2022 through February 11, 2022. 

 
3. On February 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8119 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective February 12, 2022 through  
March 13, 2022. 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 39 of 212



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
August 13, 2022 to September 11, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
4. On March 7, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8124 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective March 14, 2022 through April 13, 2022. 

 
5. On April 4, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8134 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective April 14, 2022 through May 13, 2022. 

 
6. On May 2, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8144 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective May 14, 2022 through June 13, 2022. 

 
7. On June 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8155 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective June 14, 2022 through July 13, 2022.  

 
8. On July 5, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8165 re-authorizing remote 

teleconference meetings of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative bodies under the 
provisions of AB 361 for a period of 30 days, effective July 14, 2022 through August 12, 2022. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that 
waived certain teleconferencing requirements under the Brown Act, allowing public agencies to 
conduct public meetings via teleconference, while still complying with open meeting 
requirements and abiding by public health orders.  The Executive Order N-29-20 expired on 
September 30, 2021.  

AB 361 amends the Brown Act’s Government Code Section 54953 to allow a local agency the 
option to hold teleconference meetings without complying with teleconferencing requirements 
of the Brown Act, if certain circumstances and findings are met.  The special circumstances are 
found particularly in subsection (e) of Section 54953, and require that the legislative body holds 
a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and: 

1. That state and local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing; or 

2. The legislative body holds a meeting for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees; or 

3. The legislative body holds a meeting and determines by majority vote, that as a result of 
the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of the attendees. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 40 of 212



Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings for the Period of 
August 13, 2022 to September 11, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in Compliance 
with Government Code Section 54953(E) and Other Applicable Provisions of Assembly Bill 361  
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
On July 5, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8165 making a determination approving 
findings in accordance with AB 361, to allow the City to continue the option to hold 
teleconference meetings without complying with certain teleconferencing requirements of the 
Brown Act.  The resolution is only effective for 30 days and expires on August 12, 2022.  The City 
Council may renew the resolution, every 30 days, at which time a subsequent resolution 
(Attachment “A”) will need to be adopted.  If the resolution lapses, the City’s Legislative Bodies 
will be required to comply with the Brown Act (Pre-COVID-19 Pandemic) until a new resolution 
is adopted to make the initial determinations and findings again. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no additional fiscal impact associated with consideration of the proposed resolution.  
The cost of the Zoom virtual meeting platform is included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted 
Budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8170 (Attachment “A”)  
re-authorizing remote teleconference meetings for the period of August 13, 2022 to  
September 11, 2022, of the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies in compliance with 
Government Code (GC) Section 54953(E) and other applicable provisions of Assembly Bill (AB) 
361.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8170 
B. Assembly Bill (AB) 361 

 
 
 
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 41 of 212



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8170 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF 
EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND 
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS FOR ALL 
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, FROM  
AUGUST 13, 2022 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 11, 2022, PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTON 54953(E) IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 (also known as the “Coronavirus Disease”) is a respiratory disease 
that was first reported in China in December 2019, it has now spread throughout the world, 
including the State of California and the City of San Fernando (“City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency in 
response to the rising cases of COVID-19 throughout the state of California; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors and Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health (“LACDPH”) declared a local emergency and local 
public health emergency in response to the spread of COVID-19 throughout the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2020, in response to the conditions of extreme peril to the safety 
of persons within the City, the San Fernando City Council (“City Council”) declared a local 
emergency consistent with the declaration of local emergency by the LACPH; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill  
No. 361 (“AB 361”), which, until January 1, 2024, authorizes a local agency to use 
teleconferencing without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”) when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting 
during a declared state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing or when the legislative 
body has determined that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 
of attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, since the declaration of emergency by LACDPH, LACDPH have issued a series 

of Health Officer Orders containing mandates and recommendations for keeping individuals safe 
and preventing the spread of COVID-19; and  

 
WHEREAS, the LACDPH Health Officer Order issued March 23, 2022, and effective  

April 1, 2022, continues to advise that all individuals and businesses are strongly urged to follow 
the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance, containing health and safety recommendations for  
COVID-19;  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 42 of 212



  RES. NO. 8170 

2 

WHEREAS, the LACDPH Best Practices Guidance provides, among other things: 
 
1. Masks are strongly recommended in most indoor public settings to prevent 

transmission of the virus particularly to persons with prolonged, cumulative 
exposures (e.g., workers and to those with higher risk of illness (e.g., unvaccinated, 
older persons, or those with underlying medical conditions such as 
immunocompromised persons); and  
 

2. Per state and federal law, visitors and workers must continue to wear masks in 
specified high-risk settings to continue protecting vulnerable populations and the 
workforce that delivers critical services in these settings; and  

 
3. Identify and regularly clean frequently touched surfaces and objects such as 

doorknobs, elevator buttons, tools, handrails, phones, headsets, bathroom surfaces 
and steering wheels;  

 
4. Whenever possible, take steps to reduce crowding indoors and encourage physical 

distancing including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Limiting indoor occupancy to increase the physical space between employees at 
the worksite, between employees and customers, and between customers;  
 

b. Using tape, signs, or other visual cues such as decals or colored tape on the floor, 
placed six feet apart, to guide customers about where to stand to avoid crowding 
and to encourage distancing where lines may form; and 

 
c. Continuing, where feasible, to offer telework options and continue those 

teleworking arrangements that do not interfere with business operations as 
telework significantly reduces the risk of exposure for employees, their 
households, and communities. 

 
 WHEREAS, the surges in COVID-19 variants overseas have the potential to quickly spread 
in the United States warranting continued vigilance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, AB 361 requires legislative bodies that conduct teleconferenced meetings 
under its the relaxed and abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting 
and post agendas, as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and 
address the legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may 
access the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a manner 
that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing 
before the legislative body; and 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 43 of 212



  RES. NO. 8170 

3 

WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the legislative body take no further action on agenda items 
when there is a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the meeting, or 
in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members of the 
public from offering public comments, until public access is restored; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 

submitted in advance of the meeting and specifies that the legislative body must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in real time; and 
 

WHEREAS, AB 361 prohibits the legislative body from closing the public comment period 
and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment period has 
elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council meetings and meetings of certain other subordinate bodies 
of the City (e.g, the Planning and Preservation Commission) are open and public, as required by 
the Brown Act, so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the City 
Council or City Commission conduct their business; and 

 
WHEREAS, in light of the continuing State declaration of emergency resulting from the 

COVID-19 pandemic, the continuing recommendation by Los Angeles County Public Health 
officials to maintain various infection control and containment measures referenced above , the 
City Council desires to make the findings required by AB 361 to allow the City Council and all City 
Boards and Commissions to continue to meet under AB 361’s abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  

 
SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 

this Resolution by reference; and 
 
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that the State and County declarations of emergency 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic remain in place; and 
 
SECTION 3. The City Council finds that local officials, specifically, the Los Angeles 

County Department of Public Health, has continued to recommend social distancing measures.  
 

SECTION 4. The City of San Fernando staff along with the City Council are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 
Resolution including, taking measures to ensure that meetings of the City Council, the Planning 
and Preservation Commission and all meetings of other commissions subject to the Brown Act 
are conducted in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e) to the 
extent such bodies continue to avail themselves of the relaxed and teleconferencing procedures 
permitted under AB 361.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 44 of 212



  RES. NO. 8170 

4 

SECTION 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without 
regard to whether any portion of this Resolution would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 6. The operational provisions of this Resolution shall take effect  
August 13, 2022, and expire upon the earlier of the following (i) 12:00 am on September 11, 2022; 
or (ii) such time the City Council adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government 
Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the legislative bodies of the City of San 
Fernando may continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953. 
 

SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS  1st day of August, 2022. 

  
       
           

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California  

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 45 of 212



  RES. NO. 8170 

5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8170 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
1st day of August, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of August, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 46 of 212



ATTACHMENT "B" 

Assembly Bill No. 361 

CHAPTER 165 

An act to add and repeal Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, and to amend, repeal, 

and add Section 54953 of, and to add and repeal Section 11133 of, the Government 

Code, relating to open meetings, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect 

immediately. 

[ Approved by Governor September 16, 2021. 

Filed with Secretary of State September 16, 2021. ] 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

AB 361, Robert Rivas. Open meetings: state and local agencies: teleconferences. 

(1) Existing law, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with specified exceptions, that all

meetings of a legislative body of a local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and

public and that all persons be permitted to attend and participate. The act contains

specified provisions regarding the timelines for posting an agenda and providing for the

ability of the public to directly address the legislative body on any item of interest to the

public. The act generally requires all regular and special meetings of the legislative body

be held within the boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises

jurisdiction, subject to certain exceptions. The act allows for meetings to occur via

teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, particularly that the legislative body

notice each teleconference location of each member that will be participating in the public

meeting, that each teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members of

the public be allowed to address the legislative body at each teleconference location, that

the legislative body post an agenda at each teleconference location, and that at least a

quorum of the legislative body participate from locations within the boundaries of the local

agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption to the jurisdictional requirement for

health authorities, as defined. The act authorizes the district attorney or any interested

person, subject to certain provisions, to commence an action by mandamus or injunction

for the purpose of obtaining a judicial determination that specified actions taken by a

legislative body are null and void.

Existing law, the California Emergency Services Act, authorizes the Governor, or the 

Director of Emergency Services when the governor is inaccessible, to proclaim a state of 

emergency under specified circumstances. 

Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for 

teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that notice and accessibility 

requirements are met, the public members are allowed to observe and address the 

legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a local agency has a 

procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for 

individuals with disabilities, as specified. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 47 of 212



This bill, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 

without complying with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. 

Brown Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a declared 

state of emergency, as that term is defined, when state or local health officials have 

imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed 

state of emergency held for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether meeting 

in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and during a 

proclaimed state of emergency when the legislative body has determined that meeting in 

person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, as provided. 

This bill would require legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings under these 

abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, 

as described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address the 

legislative body, to give notice of the means by which members of the public may access 

the meeting and offer public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 

via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to conduct the meeting in a 

manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public 

appearing before the legislative body. The bill would require the legislative body to take 

no further action on agenda items when there is a disruption which prevents the public 

agency from broadcasting the meeting, or in the event of a disruption within the local 

agency’s control which prevents members of the public from offering public comments, 

until public access is restored. The bill would specify that actions taken during the 

disruption are subject to challenge proceedings, as specified. 

This bill would prohibit the legislative body from requiring public comments to be 

submitted in advance of the meeting and would specify that the legislative body must 

provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment in 

real time. The bill would prohibit the legislative body from closing the public comment 

period and the opportunity to register to provide public comment, until the public comment 

period has elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as specified. When 

there is a continuing state of emergency, or when state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, the bill would require a legislative 

body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the first teleconferenced 

meeting pursuant to these provisions, and to make those findings every 30 days 

thereafter, in order to continue to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing 

procedures. 

Existing law prohibits a legislative body from requiring, as a condition to attend a meeting, 

a person to register the person’s name, or to provide other information, or to fulfill any 

condition precedent to the person’s attendance. 

This bill would exclude from that prohibition, a registration requirement imposed by a third- 

party internet website or other online platform not under the control of the legislative body. 

(2) Existing law, the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, requires, with specified exceptions, 

that all meetings of a state body be open and public and all persons be permitted to attend 

any meeting of a state body. The act requires at least one member of the state body to 

be physically present at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 48 of 212



The Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the requirements of the Bagley- 

Keene Open Meeting Act for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided 

that notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members are allowed to 

observe and address the state body at the meeting, and that a state body has a procedure 

for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals 

with disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 

accessibility requirements, a state body to hold public meetings through teleconferencing 

and to make public meetings accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all 

members of the public seeking to observe and to address the state body. With respect to 

a state body holding a public meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend 

certain requirements of existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference 

location be accessible to the public and that members of the public be able to address 

the state body at each teleconference location. Under the bill, a state body that holds a 

meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 

address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any 

requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and 

offer public comment. The bill would require that each state body that holds a meeting 

through teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. 

The bill would urge state bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 

use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 

possible to existing law, as provided. 

(3) Existing law establishes the various campuses of the California State University under 

the administration of the Trustees of the California State University, and authorizes the 

establishment of student body organizations in connection with the operations of 

California State University campuses. 

The Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 generally requires a legislative body, as 

defined, of a student body organization to conduct its business in a meeting that is open 

and public. The act authorizes the legislative body to use teleconferencing, as defined, 

for the benefit of the public and the legislative body in connection with any meeting or 

proceeding authorized by law. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to specified notice and 

accessibility requirements, a legislative body, as defined for purposes of the act, to hold 

public meetings through teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 

telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe 

and to address the legislative body. With respect to a legislative body holding a public 

meeting pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend certain requirements of 

existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference location be accessible 

to the public and that members of the public be able to address the legislative body at 

each teleconference location. Under the bill, a legislative body that holds a meeting 

through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and address the 

meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically would satisfy any requirement that the 

legislative body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 49 of 212



comment. The bill would require that each legislative body that holds a meeting through 

teleconferencing provide notice of the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The 

bill would urge legislative bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill to 

use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 

possible to existing law, as provided. 

(4) This bill would declare the Legislature’s intent, consistent with the Governor’s 

Executive Order No. N-29-20, to improve and enhance public access to state and local 

agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future emergencies by allowing 

broader access through teleconferencing options. 

(5) This bill would incorporate additional changes to Section 54953 of the Government 

Code proposed by AB 339 to be operative only if this bill and AB 339 are enacted and 

this bill is enacted last. 

(6) The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of ensuring public 

access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of public officials and agencies, 

to comply with a statutory enactment that amends or enacts laws relating to public records 

or open meetings and contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the 

constitutional requirements relating to this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(7) Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that limits the right of access to 

the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies be adopted 

with findings demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need for 

protecting that interest. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 

(8) This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately as an urgency statute. 

DIGEST KEY 

Vote: 2/3  Appropriation: no  Fiscal Committee: yes  Local Program: no 
 
 

 

BILL TEXT 

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
SECTION 1. 

Section 89305.6 is added to the Education Code, to read: 

89305.6. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 

accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a legislative body may hold public 

meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 50 of 212



or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 

the legislative body. 

(b) (1) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant 

to this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 

the clerk or other personnel of the legislative body, or the public, as a condition of 

participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a legislative body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 

this section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 

meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 

proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the legislative body at each teleconference 

conference location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

(E) At least one member of the legislative body be physically present at the location 

specified in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A legislative body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members 

of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 

electronically, consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) 

and (e), shall have satisfied any requirement that the legislative body allow members of 

the public to attend the meeting and offer public comment. A legislative body need not 

make available any physical location from which members of the public may observe the 

meeting and offer public comment. 

(d) If a legislative body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section 

and allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 

otherwise electronically, the legislative body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 

modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 

federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 

resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 

of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 

(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each legislative body that holds 

a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 

according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 

otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 51 of 212



(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 

agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 

members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 

instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 

any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 

been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 

of the means of public observation and comment, a legislative body may satisfy this 

requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 

rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 

observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 

time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the legislative body’s 

internet website. 

(f) All legislative bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged 

to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as 

reasonably possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 

maximize transparency and provide the public access to legislative body meetings. 

(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 

repealed. 

SEC. 2. 

Section 11133 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

11133. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, and subject to the notice and 

accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), a state body may hold public 

meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible telephonically, 

or otherwise electronically, to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address 

the state body. 

(b) (1) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to 

this section, all requirements in this article requiring the physical presence of members, 

the clerk or other personnel of the state body, or the public, as a condition of participation 

in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby suspended. 

(2) For a state body holding a public meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this 

section, all of the following requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A) Each teleconference location from which a member will be participating in a public 

meeting or proceeding be identified in the notice and agenda of the public meeting or 

proceeding. 

(B) Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 

(C) Members of the public may address the state body at each teleconference conference 

location. 

(D) Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 52 of 212



(E) At least one member of the state body be physically present at the location specified 

in the notice of the meeting. 

(c) A state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of 

the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 

consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and (e), shall 

have satisfied any requirement that the state body allow members of the public to attend 

the meeting and offer public comment. A state body need not make available any physical 

location from which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public 

comment. 

(d) If a state body holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section and 

allows members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 

otherwise electronically, the state body shall also do both of the following: 

(1) Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable 

modification or accommodation from individuals with disabilities, consistent with the 

federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 

resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2) Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the means by which members 

of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph 

(2) of subdivision (e). 

(e) Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each state body that holds a 

meeting through teleconferencing pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1) Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, each public meeting 

according to the timeframes otherwise prescribed by this article, and using the means 

otherwise prescribed by this article, as applicable. 

(2) In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting is otherwise given or the 

agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, also give notice of the means by which 

members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to any 

instance in which there is a change in the means of public observation and comment, or 

any instance prior to the effective date of this section in which the time of the meeting has 

been noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also including notice 

of the means of public observation and comment, a state body may satisfy this 

requirement by advertising the means of public observation and comment using the most 

rapid means of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of public 

observation and comment using the most rapid means of communication available at the 

time shall include, but need not be limited to, posting such means on the state body’s 

internet website. 

(f) All state bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in this section are urged to 

use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably 

possible to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to maximize 

transparency and provide the public access to state body meetings. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 53 of 212



(g) This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 2022, and as of that date is 

repealed. 

SEC. 3. 

Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 

all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 

agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 

may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 

agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 

teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 

requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 

specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 

connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 

All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 

agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 

that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 

before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 

identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 

location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 

the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 

of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 

subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 

public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 

teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 

body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 

through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 

from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 

vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 

recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 

in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 

Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 

paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 54 of 212



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 

records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 

(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 

the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 

when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 

that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 

the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 

number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 

participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 

and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 

members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 

authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 

authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 

subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 

to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 

pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 

committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 

(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 

advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 

of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 

of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 

state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 

distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 

purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 

in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 

determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 

emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 

attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 

following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 

required by this chapter. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 55 of 212



(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 

agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 

body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 

the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 

posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 

public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 

include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 

service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 

to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 

the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 

legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 

meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 

or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 

service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 

agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 

option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 

public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 

54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 

the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 

and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 

legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 

comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 

through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 

the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 

required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 

participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 

item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 

register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 

comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 

public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 

per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 

including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 

otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 

correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 56 of 212



opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 

comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 

teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 

body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 

subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 

following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 

safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 

distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 

proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 

(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 

repealed. 

SEC. 3.1. 

Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 

all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 

agency in person, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 

conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 

rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 

nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 

may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 

agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 

teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all otherwise applicable 

requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a 

specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 

connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 

All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 57 of 212



(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 

agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 

that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 

before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 

identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 

location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 

the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 

of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 

subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the 

public to address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each 

teleconference location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 

body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 

through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 

from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 

vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 

recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 

in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 

Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 

paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 

records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 

(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 

the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 

when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 

that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 

the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 

number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 

participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 

and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 

members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 

authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 

authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 

subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 

to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 58 of 212



(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 

pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 

committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 

(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 

advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) (1) A local agency may use teleconferencing without complying with the requirements 

of paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements 

of paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following circumstances: 

(A) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and 

state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 

distancing. 

(B) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the 

purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting 

in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has 

determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the 

emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 

attendees. 

(2) A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this subdivision shall do all of the 

following: 

(A) The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and post agendas as otherwise 

required by this chapter. 

(B) The legislative body shall allow members of the public to access the meeting and the 

agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 

body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of the time of 

the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 

posted, the legislative body shall also give notice of the means by which members of the 

public may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda shall identify and 

include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based 

service option. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 

to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or comment. 

(C) The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that protects 

the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the 

legislative body of a local agency. 

(D) In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the 

meeting to members of the public using the call-in option or internet-based service option, 

or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents members 

of the public from offering public comments using the call-in option or internet-based 

service option, the body shall take no further action on items appearing on the meeting 

agenda until public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based service 

option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during a disruption which prevents the 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 59 of 212



public agency from broadcasting the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 

54960.1. 

(E) The legislative body shall not require public comments to be submitted in advance of 

the meeting and must provide an opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 

and offer comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed to require the 

legislative body to provide a physical location from which the public may attend or 

comment. 

(F) Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to provide public comment 

through the use of an internet website, or other online platform, not under the control of 

the local legislative body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may be 

required to register as required by the third-party internet website or online platform to 

participate. 

(G) (i) A legislative body that provides a timed public comment period for each agenda 

item shall not close the public comment period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to 

register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed public 

comment period has elapsed. 

(ii) A legislative body that does not provide a timed public comment period, but takes 

public comment separately on each agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time 

per agenda item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public comment, 

including time for members of the public to register pursuant to subparagraph (F), or 

otherwise be recognized for the purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii) A legislative body that provides a timed general public comment period that does not 

correspond to a specific agenda item shall not close the public comment period or the 

opportunity to register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general public 

comment period has elapsed. 

(3) If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, in order to continue to 

teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 

body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time pursuant to 

subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph (1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the 

following findings by majority vote: 

(A) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency. 

(B) Any of the following circumstances exist: 

(i) The state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet 

safely in person. 

(ii) State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social 

distancing. 

(4) For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” means a state of emergency 

proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 

(commencing with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 60 of 212



(f) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, and as of that date is 

repealed. 

SEC. 4. 

Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 

all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 

agency, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 

may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 

agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 

teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 

and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 

proceeding. 

(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 

connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 

All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 

agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 

that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 

before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 

identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 

location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 

the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 

of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 

subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 

address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 

location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 

body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 

through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 

from providing the public with additional teleconference locations 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 

vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 

recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 

in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 

Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 

paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 61 of 212



(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 

records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 

(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 

the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 

when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 

that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 

the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 

number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 

participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 

and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 

members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 

authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 

authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 

subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 

to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 

pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 

committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 

(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 

advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 4.1. 

Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to read: 

54953. 

(a) All meetings of the legislative body of a local agency shall be open and public, and 

all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local 

agency, in person except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies shall 

conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with applicable state and federal civil 

rights laws, including, but not limited to, any applicable language access and other 

nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the legislative body of a local agency 

may use teleconferencing for the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local 

agency in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. The 

teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all requirements of this chapter 

and all otherwise applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting or 

proceeding. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 62 of 212



(2) Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used for all purposes in 

connection with any meeting within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. 

All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3) If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post 

agendas at all teleconference locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner 

that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing 

before the legislative body of a local agency. Each teleconference location shall be 

identified in the notice and agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 

location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of 

the members of the legislative body shall participate from locations within the boundaries 

of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as provided in 

subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to 

address the legislative body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 

location. 

(4) For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a meeting of a legislative 

body, the members of which are in different locations, connected by electronic means, 

through either audio or video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 

from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c) (1) No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, whether preliminary or final. 

(2) The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the 

vote or abstention on that action of each member present for the action. 

(3) Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a summary of a 

recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid 

in the form of fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in subdivision (d) of 

Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken. This 

paragraph shall not affect the public’s right under the California Public Records Act 

(Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to inspect or copy 

records created or received in the process of developing the recommendation. 

(d) (1) Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in paragraph (3) of subdivision 

(b), if a health authority conducts a teleconference meeting, members who are outside 

the jurisdiction of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a quorum 

when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 percent of the number of members 

that would establish a quorum are present within the boundaries of the territory over which 

the authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides a teleconference 

number, and associated access codes, if any, that allows any person to call in to 

participate in the meeting and the number and access codes are identified in the notice 

and agenda of the meeting. 

(2) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as discouraging health authority 

members from regularly meeting at a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the 

authority or from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction of the 

authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is established pursuant to this 

subdivision shall be subject to all other requirements of this section. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 63 of 212



(3) For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means any entity created pursuant 

to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the 

Welfare and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant to Article 1 

(commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 for the purpose of contracting 

pursuant to Section 14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 

committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to Chapter 2.2 

(commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code if the 

advisory committee has 12 or more members. 

(e) This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 

SEC. 5. 

Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill incorporate amendments to Section 54953 of the 

Government Code proposed by both this bill and Assembly Bill 339. Those sections of 

this bill shall only become operative if (1) both bills are enacted and become effective on 

or before January 1, 2022, but this bill becomes operative first, (2) each bill amends 

Section 54953 of the Government Code, and (3) this bill is enacted after Assembly Bill 

339, in which case Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by Sections 3 

and 4 of this bill, shall remain operative only until the operative date of Assembly Bill 339, 

at which time Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill shall become operative. 

SEC. 6. 

It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this act to improve and enhance public access 

to state and local agency meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future applicable 

emergencies, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing options consistent 

with the Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, permitting 

expanded use of teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SEC. 7. 

The Legislature finds and declares that Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, repeal, 

and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, further, within the meaning of paragraph 

(7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the purposes 

of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of 

local public bodies or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant to 

paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the 

Legislature makes the following findings: 

This act is necessary to ensure minimum standards for public participation and notice 

requirements allowing for greater public participation in teleconference meetings during 

applicable emergencies. 

SEC. 8. 

(a) The Legislature finds and declares that during the COVID-19 public health 

emergency, certain requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 

(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the 

Government Code) were suspended by Executive Order N-29-20. Audio and video 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 64 of 212



teleconference were widely used to conduct public meetings in lieu of physical location 

meetings, and public meetings conducted by teleconference during the COVID-19 public 

health emergency have been productive, have increased public participation by all 

members of the public regardless of their location in the state and ability to travel to 

physical meeting locations, have protected the health and safety of civil servants and the 

public, and have reduced travel costs incurred by members of state bodies and reduced 

work hours spent traveling to and from meetings. 

(b) The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds and repeals 

Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, Section 2 of this act, which adds and repeals 

Section 11133 of the Government Code, and Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, 

repeal, and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, all increase and potentially limit 

the public’s right of access to the meetings of public bodies or the writings of public 

officials and agencies within the meaning of Section 3 of Article I of the California 

Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the Legislature makes the following 

findings to demonstrate the interest protected by this limitation and the need for protecting 

that interest: 

(1) By removing the requirement that public meetings be conducted at a primary physical 

location with a quorum of members present, this act protects the health and safety of civil 

servants and the public and does not preference the experience of members of the public 

who might be able to attend a meeting in a physical location over members of the public 

who cannot travel or attend that meeting in a physical location. 

(2) By removing the requirement for agendas to be placed at the location of each public 

official participating in a public meeting remotely, including from the member’s private 

home or hotel room, this act protects the personal, private information of public officials 

and their families while preserving the public’s right to access information concerning the 

conduct of the people’s business. 

SEC. 9. 

This act is an urgency statute necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 

peace, health, or safety within the meaning of Article IV of the California Constitution and 

shall go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are: 

In order to ensure that state and local agencies can continue holding public meetings 

while providing essential services like water, power, and fire protection to their 

constituents during public health, wildfire, or other states of emergencies, it is necessary 

that this act take effect immediately. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 65 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 66 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 67 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 68 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
   
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Request from Kidneys Quest Foundation to Use the 

City Seal to Co-sponsor the 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council:  
 
a. Approve a request from Kidneys Quest Foundation to use the City Seal to co-sponsor the 

Kidneys Quest Foundations 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival (Attachment “A”); and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to approve co-sponsorship of future Health and Wellness Events 
organized by Kidneys Quest Foundation.  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On September 11, 2020, Kidneys Quest Foundations (“Foundation”) submitted a request to 
use the City Seal to imprint on “Emergency Backpacks” for the Foundations Emergency 
Education Backpack Distribution Program.  The Emergency Backpacks were provided to 
kidney and hemodialysis patients in California and throughout the United States to teach 
kidney patients how to prepare for disasters, such as earthquakes or fires and emergencies, 
by receiving fully stocked backpacks with emergency supplies. 
 

2. On September 20, 2020, pursuant to Resolution No. 6904, the City Council approved the 
request to use imprint the City seal on backpacks for the Kidneys Quest Emergency 
Education Backpack Distribution Program.  
 

3. On June 25, 2022, Kidneys Quest Foundation requested use of the City seal to co-sponsor 
the Foundation’s 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival event, which is being held at the 
San Fernando Recreation Park on September 25, 2022.  
 

 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 69 of 212



Consideration to Approve a Request from Kidneys Quest Foundation to Use the City Seal to Co-sponsor 
the 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
ANALYSIS:  
 
Kidneys Quest Foundation (“Foundation”) is a non-profit outreach organization that serves San 
Fernando residents who are age 12 years old or older and affected by kidney disease, as well as 
their caregivers, health professionals and family members.  The Foundation has been educating 
and bringing more community awareness to chronic kidney diseases and disorders to help 
patients take action in managing their condition; treatment; to lead productive lives; and even 
find employment while undergoing treatment, if they wish. 
 
In September 2020, the City Council approved the use of the City seal be imprinted on backpacks 
for the Kidneys Quest Emergency Education Backpack Distribution Program.  

 
On June 25, 2022, Kidneys Quest Foundation Inc. requested use of the City seal to co-sponsor the 
Foundations 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival, which is being held at the San Fernando 
Recreation Park, on September 25, 2022.  The co-sponsorship will allow KQF to use the City Seal 
on promotional material and allow the City to promote the event through various email and 
social media outlets. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item.  Additional future costs to be determined 
based on City Council direction. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a request from Kidneys Quest Foundation to 
use the City seal to co-sponsor the Kidneys Quest Foundations 2022 Health and Wellness Family 
Festival; and authorize the City Manager to approve co-sponsorship of future Health and 
Wellness Events organized by Kidneys Quest Foundation. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. 2022 Health and Wellness Family Festival 
B. Resolution No. 6904 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 70 of 212



��������	
������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������!���������������� "��� ������������������!�������������������!������������#�����������������������$ �����������%&����������������������������� �����������!�"�� ������'�������%�(���!�"�����"����������������������������#�����������"%�&���"������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������"�������������������������������������������# ���������������������"����%)*�+,--�.*�/00*1,23�*41-5�67,-87//8�961**2,23�:�9*1;,6*9<=����������������������"��!�����������������>���%?2@*1@4,2A*2@<&����B�C�������D��E�����B��>���"����!���%��	
��F
G�HIJ�K�
L���M�N*O@*A.*1�PQR�PSPP���M�T<SS4A�U�V<SSOAW������M�X,@5�/0�N42�Y*12428/�U�Z*61*4@,/2�[41\�Z*61*4@,/2�X*2@*1�U�PS]�[41\�̂;*R�N42�Y*12428/R�X̂ �T_VQS`�H	�F
G�HIJ�K�
N*2,/1�Z*9/a16*�Nba41*

cdcc�e	Jf�g�h�i	ff
	jj�kJIKfl�k	j�K�Jf

m

ATTACHMENT "A"

ATTACHMENT "A"August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 71 of 212



�������������	


���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!���������������������"����������������������������������������� �#��������������������������������������������������������������������$����$���� %&'()'*)+�,-./01-203�����������4���5����36�7�8�����!���������8������7�9��������:����$�;���������$�<7!!����7�������=>0(?+00�@�A+0->.B+0�C+?D-.0E������������$������$���F��$����������������$� 8������������������������������$�����$�6����������$��������������������$��������������$������������$���� C'BB(?'G(-?�HG'G(-?;$���IE#JFKL��������������� E�������������������������������������M����$��������� N����������������5���������������������������������$������������������ O������������������������������������ P�	
��
�Q	R�S��
T�	3����������������U5�����V������������ �����������$�������V���������������$���������� 3�������������������U5�����V������������ �������������������5�������������$����������� WX�	Y�S�Z���[	T
T�	
\�]^^]_`�a%_`bc%A \�da%_�̀ ef^AghijklmnJ���o;���o

fA^]A%pqrdAHg� %dcA`Hf^bH` ,``s_t�̀ cua%gd̂ b�@Huff^Ag�]A^ufp``gdb]

v

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 72 of 212



��������� �	�
��
���	 �
�������	���

�

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 73 of 212



RESOLUTION NO. 6904 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO, AMENDING THE STANDARD 
MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE REGARDING USE OF CITY 
SEAL 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a standard management procedure 
for the use of the City seal on August 3, 1987. 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to revise the procedure to limit the 
use of the City seal, as provided in this resolution. 

WHEREAS, it shall be City policy that the City seal, as described in 
Municipal Code Section 1-13, shall only be used as provided in this policy. The 
purpose of this policy is to: 

A Ensure that the City seal is not used for inappropriate events and affairs. 

B. Control use of the City seal so as to prevent unauthorized use, which 
could imply City participation, support, or sponsorship in commercial, 
political, or non-City events. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO HEREBY 
FINDS AND RESOLVES: 

The City has designated an official seal, which serves to identify City 
involvement in some manner. Typically, the seal is used on City stationary, City 
vehicles, brochures and other information. It is important that some guidelines 
be followed so that the seal be used in an appropriate manner. Therefore, the 
following guidelines shall be followed pertaining to the City seal: 

720626-1 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

The City seal may be used on all City related literature, material, 
vehicles, etc., and for City sponsored or co-sponsored functions 
and events. 

The City seal may be used on t-shirts, hats, calendars and other 
like material when sponsored by the City upon approval of the City 
Administrator. 

The City seal may not be used by organizations other than the City 
without prior approval of a majority of the City Council. 

The City seal may not be used for political or commercial purposes. 

In cases where it is unclear whether a proposed use of the seal is 
appropriate, three members of the City Council must approve the 
use as a scheduled item on a City Council agenda 

1 

ATTACHMENT "B"

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 74 of 212



PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5th day of May, 2003. 

]r•J,~ I~ 
ayor se Hernandez,Ph.iP 

ATTEST: 

Elena G. Chavez, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

~&.- = 
Michael Estrada, City Attorney 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss. 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

I, Elena G. Chavez, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the 
City of San Fernando and signed by the Mayor of the City of San Fernando at a 
regular meeting held on the 5th day of May, 2003; and that the same was passed 
by the following vote: 

AYES: Hernandez, De La Torre, Veres, Ruelas, Martinez - 5 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

Elena G. Chavez, City cierk 

2 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 75 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 76 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 77 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 78 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Accept Project Completion and Authorize the Recordation of the 

Notice of Completion for the Pico Street Improvement Project, Job No. 7610, Plan 
No. P-731 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the improvements as constructed by Hardy & Harper, Inc., and consider the work 

completed; 
 
b. Authorize the issuance and filing of the “Notice of Completion” (Attachment “A”) with the 

Los Angeles County Office of the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk; and 
 

c. Authorize the release of the five percent retention amount ($25,093.17) after the 35-day lien 
period from the date the Notice of Completion is recorded. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On March 8, 2022, the City Clerk Department received and opened four bids for construction 

of the Pico Street Improvement Project (the Project).  Staff analyzed all bids and determined 
the bid from Hardy & Harper, Inc., to be the lowest responsible bid. 

 
2. On April 4, 2022, the City Council awarded a Contract No. 2062 to Hardy & Harper, Inc. 

(Contractor), in the amount of $465,000, authorized the City Manager to execute change 
orders to the contract with Hardy & Harper, Inc., and approved change orders not-to-exceed 
10% ($46,500) of contract amount.  

 
3. On April 20, 2022, a Notice to Proceed was issued to the Contractor. 

 
4. On April 25, 2022, construction started and on June 7, 2022, the full scope of work was 

completed by the Contractor. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 79 of 212



Consideration to Accept Project Completion and Authorize the Recordation of the Notice of Completion 
for the Pico Street Improvement Project, Job No. 7610, Plan No. P-731 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
This project consisted of roadway resurfacing and concrete improvements on an approximate 
0.4-mile section of Pico Street, between Kalisher Street and Brand Boulevard. The work included: 
 

• Replacement of concrete curb and gutters; 
• Pavement rehabilitation; 
• Reconstruction of non-ADA compliant wheelchair ramps; 
• Replacement of sidewalks; 
• Replacement of driveway approaches; and 
• Installation of traffic striping and signage. 

 
Three change orders were issued for this project with the first being in the amount of $3,387.05 
for additional signage and striping. A second change order was issued in the amount of $3,823.30 
for partial project quantity balancing of bid items Nos. 1-19, 21-23, and 28. A third change order 
was issued in the amount of $29,653.10 for final project quantity balancing of bid items Nos. 19 
and 26. The total amount of all three change orders, $36,863.45, was below the 10 percent 
contingency amount of $46,500. The project’s inspection and testing services were provided by 
GMU, Inc. Labor compliance and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) oversight for the 
project was provided by Michael Baker International, Inc.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Funding for this project was included in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Adopted Budget with the 
exception of Measure R funding which was added on April 4, 2022. Several funding sources, 
including CDBG, SB-1, and Measure R were utilized to complete this project. The total 
construction cost of $501,863.45, including all change orders, was under the total approved 
construction budget with contingencies of $511,500.  
 
 

SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
CDBG 026-3693-0182 $ 479,325 
SB-1 025-3623-0000 $ 50,000 
Measure R 012-3210-0000 $ 100,000 
Total Sources:  $ 629,325 

 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Engineering/Administration/Construction 
Management/Inspection/Testing/Compliance 012/025-311-0182-4600 $ 121,484 

Construction (including 10% contingency) 012/025/026-311-0182-4600 $ 501,863 
Total Uses:  $ 623,347 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 80 of 212



Consideration to Accept Project Completion and Authorize the Recordation of the Notice of Completion 
for the Pico Street Improvement Project, Job No. 7610, Plan No. P-731 
Page 3 of 3 

Additional funding using Measure R Funds in the amount of $100,000 was appropriated to 
complete the project, including a 10 percent contingency for the project, as well as administrative 
and management costs. Overall, the project was completed under the budgeted amount by 
$5,978. These funds will be returned to the Measure R fund balance to be appropriated by City 
Council in future years. 

CONCLUSION: 

The Pico Street Improvement Project has been completed to staff’s satisfaction and is in 
conformance with the approved plans and specifications.  Project acceptance and filing the 
Notice of Completion allows for the project to be closed out. 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Notice of Completion

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 81 of 212



Notice pursuant to Civil Code Section 3093, must be filed within 10 days after completion. 
 
1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: work on the Pico Street Improvement Project, Job No. 7610 has been completed, 

and it is recommended that a Notice of Completion be executed and recorded 
2. NAME AND ADDRESS OF OWNER:  City of San Fernando, a municipal corporation, 117 Macneil Street, San 

Fernando, CA  91340 
3. DESCRIPTION OF THE PUBLIC WORK:  Project construction improvements consisted of pavement rehabilitation, 

the removal and replacement of certain sections of curb and gutter, sidewalk, driveway approaches, and the 
reconstruction of non-ADA compliant wheelchair ramps along this section of Pico Street. 

4. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of 
San Fernando, County of Los Angeles, State of California, and is described as: an approximate 0.4-mile section of 
Pico Street, between Kalisher Street and Brand Boulevard 

5. ACCEPTED AND COMPLETED:  Work on said contract was completed and accepted on August 1, 2022 
6. NATURE OF OWNER’S INTEREST: Public Right of Way (Public Street(s))  
7. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR:  Hardy & Harper, Inc., 32 Rancho Circle, Lake Forest, CA  92630 
8. DECLARATION:  I, Matthew Baumgardner, duly appointed Director of Public Works of the City of San Fernando, 

have read the foregoing Notice of Completion, have made my verification on behalf of said City, and know the contents 
thereof to be true.  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true 
and correct. 

    
                                       ________________________ 
  Matthew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works         Date 
  City of San Fernando, California 
  (City Seal) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
State of California   ) 
County of Los Angeles  ) 

 

On  _________________ before me, Julia Fritz, Notary Public, personally appeared, Matthew Baumgarder 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
Signature______________________     (Seal) 

Julia Fritz, Notary Public     

 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
City of San Fernando 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA  91340 
 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

 
 
 

Space Above This Line Reserved For The Recorder’s Use 
 

EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES PER GOVT CODE SECTION 6103 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 82 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 83 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 84 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
    
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement for City Traffic 

Engineering Services with Tom Brohard and Associates 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2091) with Tom 
Brohard and Associates, in an amount not to exceed the annual City Council approved 
budgeted expenditure for City Traffic Engineering Services for a three-year term, with a City 
option to renew for two additional years; and 
  

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement and related documents. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On April 4, 2022, a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) (Attachment “B”) for City Traffic 

Engineering Services was published on the City’s website. 
 
2. On May 2, 2022, the City received a total of nine proposals to provide City Traffic Engineering 

Services: General Technologies and Solutions, Interwest Consulting Group, KOA Corporation, 
Minagar & Associates, Tom Brohard and Associates, Transoft Solutions, Transtech, W.G. 
Zimmerman Engineering and Willdan. 

 
3. From May 16, 2022 through June 17, 2022, staff reviewed and evaluate each proposal. 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The Public Works Department’s Administration and Engineering Division is staffed with two Civil 
Engineering Assistant II, one Management Analyst, and one Executive Assistant in addition to the 
Director of Public Works.  Due to the increase in the number of Capital Improvement Projects, 
which in many instances require a traffic engineer’s review and analysis, and the increasing need 
to have specialized engineering services to review traffic plans, it was determined that having  
on-call access to traffic engineering services would be beneficial to the Department. 

ANill 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 85 of 212



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement for City Traffic Engineering Services with 
Tom Brohard and Associates 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
On-call contracts for professional engineering services are an effective way to retain engineering 
consultants to ensure that public works projects and programs are delivered in a timely and  
cost-effective way.  With an on-call contract, the City has the ability to call on consultants when 
work is needed without incurring the additional costs associated with selecting consultants 
individually for each scope of work.  The specialized expertise of a consultant is particularly useful 
when the City must comply with statutory requirements, saving a great deal of time and reducing 
the risk to the City of costly mistakes. A consultant's perspective is often crucial for spotting 
problems or opportunities, as well as providing independent third-party recommendations. 
 
The City currently contracts with Tom Brohard and Associates (TBA) for Traffic Engineering 
Services, whose contract expired on June 30, 2022.  Continued on-call access to traffic 
engineering services is needed to support ongoing and upcoming capital projects, assisting staff 
to ensure compliance with Department of Transportation regulations, developing and updating 
city transportation plans and policies and preparing reports detailing findings of studies.   
 
A formal RFQ for City Traffic Engineering Services was publicized on the City’s website and in the 
San Fernando Valley Sun Newspaper.  
 
The City received nine proposals for the requested service by the RFQ deadline.  After reviewing 
all the submitted proposals, staff determined that each firm meets minimum qualifications and 
is capable of delivering on the scope of work being requested.  However, TBA had the most years 
of experience specializing in, and providing, traffic engineering services to municipal clients.  
Additionally, TBA provided a very competitive hourly rate for service. Each of these areas were 
used as criteria for rating each proposal.   
 
Therefore, following a competitive proposal process, staff is recommending that the City Council 
approve a Professional Services Agreement with Tom Brohard and Associates. TBA’s proposal is 
included (Attachment “C”) for reference.    
 
Tom Brohard and Associates (TBA). 
Since its inception in 2000, TBA has specialized in providing traffic engineering and transportation 
planning services to both public and private sector clients. Mr. Brohard himself has over 50 years 
of professional experience as a traffic engineer.  TBA has a history of providing outstanding traffic 
engineering services to the City.  Since 2004, TBA has conducted numerous traffic studies and 
reviews related to traffic calming policies for the City, as well as, speed surveys and project-
specific traffic designs.  The City has been satisfied with the level of service and professional 
guidance provided by TBA. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 

The annual not-to-exceed costs for the on-call traffic engineering services contract will be based 
on the City Council approved annual budget each contract year.  The fees for each service are 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 86 of 212



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement for City Traffic Engineering Services with 
Tom Brohard and Associates 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
pre-determined (submitted with proposal) and will not fluctuate during the initial three-year 
term of each contract.  Funds totaling $75,000 to cover the cost of traffic engineering services 
being requested in the first year of the contract have been appropriated within the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Adopted Budget in account 001-310-0000-4270. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 
2091 with Tom Brohard and Associates for City Traffic Engineering Services and authorize the City 
Manager to execute an agreement for stated services. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2091, including: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
Exhibit B: Approved Fee Schedule 

B. Request for Qualifications 
C. Tom Brohard and Associates Bid Proposal 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 87 of 212



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2091 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

Tom Brohard and Associates 
Traffic Engineering Services 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 1st day 
of August 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and TOM BROHARD AND ASSOCIATES, a Corporation 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the 
capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of three (3) years with two (2) one-year City 
options to renew commencing on August 1, 2022. Nothing in this Section shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time 
for convenience or for cause 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope of 
Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is set forth in Exhibit 
“B” (hereinafter, the “Approved Fee Schedule”).     

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the Term 
of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the dollar amount 
appropriated for services at the beginning of each fiscal year or any increases to the 
original appropriated amount throughout the fiscal year (hereinafter, the “Not-to-

fERNANID 
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 88 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 2 of 16 
 
 

Exceed Sum”), unless such added expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in 
consultation with the City Manager and the Finance Director.  In the event 
CONTRACTOR’s charges are projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the 
expiration of the Term or any single extension term, CITY may suspend 
CONTRACTOR’s performance pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures 
in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the 
compensation terms of this Agreement.   

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks 
performed during the recently concluded calendar month, including services and tasks 
performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of 
CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of 
compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each 
task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any 
disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt 
of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY shall 
not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to 
CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect 
all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 89 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 3 of 16 
 
 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works and 
Kenneth Jones, Public Works Management Analyst (hereinafter, the “CITY 
Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  
The City Manager shall be the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or 
their designee shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY 
Representatives or their designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Tom Brohard, 
President/CEO to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under 
this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct 
the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible 
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times. 
All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representatives or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a skillful and competent manner, consistent 
with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the 
same discipline as CONSULTANT in the State of California; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 
1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed under 
this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 90 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 4 of 16 
 
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited subcontractors 
and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the tasks and 
services contemplated under this Agreement and all such licenses, permits, 
certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of 
this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying and inspection. 

 The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s own 
cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary to 
correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard 
of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. Such effort by 
CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their 
discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the 
date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT or on 
CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in 
performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied 
upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the 
representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 91 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 5 of 16 
 
 

independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such personnel and shall assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 92 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 6 of 16 
 
 

III. INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) 
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, property 
damage, operations, products and completed operations, and contractual liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number 
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the laws 
of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal defense 
for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising from any 
injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by or any 
persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period 
of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and annual aggregate.    

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 93 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 7 of 16 
 
 

A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those 
set forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 
CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any work or any 
of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with 
certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 94 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 8 of 16 
 
 

CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 
of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, 
costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of 
CITY’s choice.  

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 95 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 9 of 16 
 
 
4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 

indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the 
termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause as 
provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, 
CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, 
as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be 
required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of CITY’s 
written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY 
pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability 
to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature 
of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 
diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default 
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time 
periods: 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 96 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 10 of 16 
 
 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure the 
Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to 
cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from 
the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant 
additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii 
that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure 
period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 97 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 11 of 16 
 
 

expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute 
a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give 
the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 
Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement  
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 98 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 12 of 16 
 
 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this 
Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall 
be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 
shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use 
or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and 
Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, 
renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, 
calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and 
fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no 
cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain 
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all 
Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all subcontractors and subconsultants 
working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in 
writing that CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and 
retain Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 99 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 13 of 16 
 
 
6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 

received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  

Tom Brohard and Associates 
81905 Mountain View Lane 
La Quinta, CA 92253-7611 
Attn: Tom Brohard, President/CEO 
Phone: (760) 398-8885 
Email: tbrohard0@gmail.com 
 

 City of San Fernando 
Public Works Department 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Matt Baumgardner, Director of 
Public Works 
Phone:  818-898-1237 
Fax: 818-361-6728 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully transmitted 
by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours 
after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed 
to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work required 
by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 100 of 212

mailto:tbrohard0@gmail.com


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 14 of 16 
 
 

any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 
contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his 
or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing 
Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or 
obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 101 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 15 of 16 
 
 

together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten 
amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding 
unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully 
executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two 
original counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 102 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2091 
City Engineering Services 
Page 16 of 16 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  TOM BROHARD AND ASSOCIATES 

By:   By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager    
   Name:  
Date:     
   Title:  
     
APPROVED AS TO FORM  Date:  
     
     
By:     
 Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney    
     
Date:     

 

 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 103 of 212



CONTRACT NO. 2091
                EXHIBIT "A"

April 29, 2022 lorn Brohard amd Associates 
Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
Public Works Department 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, California 91340 

SUBJECT: City of San Fernando RFQ - Traffic Engineering Services 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

.As indicated in the City of San Fernando's Request for Qualifications for Traffic 
Engineering Services, Tom Brohard and .Associates is pleased to submit this 
response and proposal to provide on call traffic engineering and transportation 
planning services to the City of San Fernando. I have gained an exceptional 
understanding of the assignment by providing these on call services to the 
community continuously since mid-2003. 

UNDERSTANDING OF THE REQUESTED SCOPE. OF SERVICES 

The City of San Fernando desires to retain a qualified consultant to provide 
professional advice regarding traffic and transportation issues in the community. 
Services include traffic engineering, transportation planning, and the review of 
various plans, reports, and other documents associated with capital improvement 
and development projects. The focus of the work is anticipated to be on traffic 
engineering services associated with citizen requests and City projects as well as 
on various transportation planning issues that could impact the community. 

The City desires that the consultant function as an extension of City staff, serving 
the community with minimal direction and instruction. From time . to time, 
attendance at various meetings and hearings to discuss traffic and transportation 
issues may be needed. However, it is understood that attendance at regular 
meetings of the City Council, Planning & Preservation Commission, and 
Transportation & Safety Commission will not be required as part of this 
assignment. Attendance at these meetings typically occurs remotely using Zoom 
or other methods. It is also understood that regularly scheduled office hours at 
City Hall are not required. 

METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

The on-call traffic engineering and transportation planning services for the City of 
San Fernando include technical assistance and support to City staff in review of 
plans and documents associated with various projects. This assignment entails 
completion of these various tasks in a timely manner. The consultant also serves 
as a reference and resource as questions arise regarding traffic engineering and 

81905 MoR11tain Vi,a, LZ111, L:, Qllinl4, Cali.fanria 9225J-7611 
Pho11, (160) 398-8885 

Email tbrrih~ailmm 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 104 of 212



CONTRACT NO. 2091

Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 

transportation planning principles, polices, and practices. The scope of services 
for the City of San Fernando may include the following typical duties and tasks: 

► Review engineering plans and studies prepared for private developments 
and capital improvement projects. 

► Evaluate and recommend appropriate traffic calming strategies to address 
neighborhood concerns. 

► Review and analyze traffic operations including traffic signals, signs, 
striping, pavement markings, and curb markings. 

► Review work area traffic control plans. 

► Conduct/review traffic engineering and transportation planning studies. 

Qr-a-ft- r-e130ft-s-f0F =t:FanspeFtatieA-&-Safe-tY-GG>rn mission and C-ity-Cou.AGil,~. --------

► Attend Transportation & Safety Commission, City Council, and other 
meetings as may be requested. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 105 of 212



CONTRACT NO. 2091 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 
 
FEE PROPOSAL 

Compensation for all work performed by Tom Brohard and for portal-to-portal travel time to and 
from the City (if necessary) is proposed to occur on a time and materials basis at a rate of $295 
per hour. This hourly rate includes all indirect cost items such as telephone usage and mileage. 
The quoted hourly rate is effective for three years from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 and 
may be adjusted after that date. All subconsultant work involving collection of traffic data such 
as volume and speed measurements will be invoiced to the City at cost. 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 106 of 212



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

The Public Works Department is requesting RFQ’s for: 

Traffic Engineering Services 

RELEASE DATE: April 4, 2022 

RESPONSE DUE: May 2, 2022 

ATTACHMENT "B"

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 107 of 212



                                                                              

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The City of San Fernando Public Works Department is requesting RFQs from qualified firms to 
provide traffic engineering services.  The contract for services will have an initial term of three (3) 
years and allow for two one-year options to renew. The traffic engineering services being 
requested by the City are described in the Scope of Services.  
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of San Fernando was incorporated in 1911 and is currently organized according to the 
City Council/City Manager form of government with seven departments, including a Police 
Department, Public Works Department, and Recreation and Community Services Department. 
The City is approximately 2.4 square miles and has 60 miles of water mains, 40 miles of sanitary 
sewers, 50 miles of roadways, 41 traffic signals, 10 miles of storm drains, 80 miles of sidewalk, 
and water production/distribution system. The City’s total Adopted Budget for fiscal year 2021-
2022 is $62.7 million which includes a General Fund budget of $22.5 million.  
 
The City is a cost conscious provider of outstanding public services to its citizens and local 
businesses and believes that the open competition for services and products provides the City 
with the best results for its public dollars. The goal of this RFQ is for the City to receive responsive 
and competitive proposals from experienced and qualified firms to provide traffic engineering 
services. 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Traffic engineering services may include, but shall not be limited to the following: 
 

1. Traffic Safety Studies 
The selected Traffic Engineering Consultant shall perform services that include, but not 
limited to, signal and stop warrants analysis for possible signal or stop sign installations in 
accordance with the City of San Fernando Traffic Calming Plan, speed hump warrants 
analysis for possible speed hump installation, and general traffic engineering associated with 
planning, design, studies and evaluation of traffic engineering projects 

 
2. Engineering and Traffic Survey Report 

The selected Traffic Engineer will review and prepare the Engineering and Traffic Survey 
Report studies as required by Section 40802 of the California Vehicle Code in order to analyze 
speed data and recommend speed limit changes and safety related improvements. 
 
 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 108 of 212



                                                                              

 
 

3. Peer Review Project Plans 
The selected Traffic Engineer will provide peer review and make recommendations on capital 
improvement projects to assure compliance with California MUTCD and Caltrans 
requirements.  

 
4.   Develop the Scope of Work for Development Studies 

Work with Staff and developers to develop scopes of work for traffic impact analysis reports 
for development and perform completeness checks prior to land-use submittals. 
 

5. Miscellaneous Traffic Engineering Services 
Traffic engineering services not specifically identified in previous subtasks may be performed 
by the Consultant at the direction of the City. 

 
• Review subdivision or new development projects involving traffic impact analyses; 

 
• Review of traffic signal timing plans and collision data for intersections, with 

recommended adjustments; 
 
• Conduct or review traffic engineering, traffic analysis, and transportation planning 

studies or project specific traffic related issues analysis; and 
 

• Review traffic control plans related to CIP’s 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS 
 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents 
 

By submitting a proposal, the prospective firm represents that it has thoroughly examined 
and become familiar with the services requested under this RFQ, and that it is capable of 
delivering quality services to the City in a creative, cost-effective & service-oriented manner. 

 
B. Questions/Clarifications 
 

Please direct any questions regarding this RFQ to Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst, via 
e-mail at kjones@sfcity.org. Questions must be received by 5:30 p.m. on Monday, April 18, 
2022. All questions received prior to the deadline will be collected and responses will be 
emailed by Friday, April 22, 2022.    

 
C. Submission of Proposals 

 
All proposals shall be submitted via email to Kenneth Jones at kjones@sfcity.org and the 
subject line of the email shall read, “City of San Fernando RFQ – Traffic Engineering Services.” 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 109 of 212



                                                                              

 
 

Proposals must be received no later than Monday, May 2, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.  All proposals 
received after that time will not be accepted.  

 
D. Withdrawal of Proposal 

 
A firm may withdraw its proposal at any time before the due date for submission by 
delivering a written request for withdrawal signed by, or on behalf of the prospective firm. 

 
E. Rights of City of San Fernando 

 
This RFQ does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City to 
pay for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of proposal or in anticipation of a 
contract. 
 
The City reserves the right to:  
 
1) Make the selection based on its sole discretion; 
2) Reject any and all proposals without prejudice; 
3) Issue subsequent Requests for Qualifications; 
4) Postpone opening for its own convenience; 
5) Remedy technical errors in the Request for Qualifications process; 
6) Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors; 
7) Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective firms; 
8) Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective firms; 
9) Accept other than the lowest fee schedule; and/or 
10) Waive informalities and irregularities in the RFQ process. 
 

F. Contract Type 
 
It is anticipated that a standard form professional services agreement (Attachment “A”) will 
be signed subsequent to City Council review and approval of the recommended firm. 
 

G. Collusion 
 
By submitting a proposal, each prospective firm represents and warrants that; its proposal 
is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any person 
not named therein; that the prospective firm has not directly, induced or solicited any other 
person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from submitting a proposal; 
and, that the prospective firm has not in any manner sought collusion to secure any improper 
advantage over any other person submitting a proposal. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 110 of 212



                                                                              

 
 

 
 
SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION  
 

RFQ Available:       April 4, 2022  
Deadline for submittal of Questions:    April 18, 2022 
Response to Questions:      April 22, 2022 
Deadline for submittal of Proposal:     May 2, 2022  
Interviews (if necessary)      May 2022 
 
Agreement Presented to Council for Review & Approval: June 6, 2022 

 
 
METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES 
 
The Director of Public Works will evaluate the information provided in the submitted proposals using 
the following criteria as a guideline: 

 
• Completeness and Comprehensiveness. 
• Responsiveness to City’s scope of services. 
• Potential to benefit the City. 
• Experience of the firm providing similar services to other municipalities. 
• Cost effectiveness. 
• Quality of proposed staff. 

 
 
SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
The City of San Fernando will select the firm on the basis of qualifications and experience. The 
following general selection criteria will be used to evaluate each consultant firm: 
 
1. Qualifications and knowledge of Firm and key  personnel’s experience most closely related 

to the stated scope of work  
2. Relevant experience within the past five years.  
3. Responsiveness to and clarity of the Request for Qualifications.  
4. References 
 
 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 
 
The Statement of Qualifications should include: 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 111 of 212



                                                                              

 
 

1. In order to be considered eligible and qualified under this RFQ, the firm must have a 
minimum of five (5) years of experience in the field of providing traffic engineering 
services for cities of similar size to the City of San Fernando. A statement of qualification 
demonstrating the foregoing and listing the firm’s experience in providing traffic 
engineering services must be submitted. 
 

2. Firm shall submit a description of its organizational structure, history, legal status (i.e. 
partnership, corporation, etc.), list of owners and officers, capabilities, experience, and 
management philosophy.  The City is particularly interested in the firm’s approach to 
managing multiple projects, organizational resources, and the primary businesses in 
which the firm is involved. 
 

3. Firm must demonstrate an understanding of the scope of services as described in this 
RFQ. 

 
4. Firm shall include the resumes of the proposed key personnel showing relevant 

education, training and experience.  Please specifically address any technical resources 
and staff that will be available to assist the City. 

 
5. References from previous clients, similar in size to the City of San Fernando, with direct 

knowledge of past performance of firm.  Client references should be located within 
California 

 
6. Fee schedule for Traffic Engineer and all related support staff. 
 

*The City may elect to interview a short list of qualified firms or interview only the top two rated 
firms based upon the Proposal received in response to the RFQ. 
 
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 112 of 212



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

Consultant 
Traffic Engineering Services 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this (Day) 
day of (Month/Day) 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and [INSERT NAME OF CONSULTANT], a [INSERT 
TYPE OF ENTITY, E.G., CORPORATION? PARTNERSHIP? SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP? ETC.] 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the 
capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of three (3) years with two (2) one-year City 
options to renew commencing from (Moth/Day), 2022. Nothing in this Section shall 
operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at 
any time for convenience or for cause 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is set forth in 
Exhibit “B” (hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”).     

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted 
aggregate sum of [NOT-TO-EXCEED SUM] (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), 

fERNANID 
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 113 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 2 of 17 
 
 

unless such added expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in consultation 
with the City Manager and the Finance Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s 
charges are projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of 
the Term or any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s 
performance pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of 
the Not-to-Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the 
compensation terms of this Agreement.  

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks 
performed during the recently concluded calendar month, including services and tasks 
performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of 
CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of 
compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each 
task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any 
disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of receipt 
of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY shall 
not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to 
CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect 
all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 114 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 3 of 17 
 
 
2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works and 

Kenneth Jones, Public Works Management Analsyt (hereinafter, the “CITY 
Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  
The City Manager shall be the chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or 
their designee shall act on behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or orders from any person other than the CITY 
Representatives or their designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates [INSERT NAME AND 
TITLE OF PERSON WHO IS CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE FOR PURPOSES OF CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATION] to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under 
this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct 
the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible 
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times. 
All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representatives or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 
CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 115 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 4 of 17 
 
 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s own 
cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary to 
correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard 
of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such effort by 
CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their 
discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the 
date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT or on 
CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in 
performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied 
upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the 
representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 116 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 5 of 17 
 
 

CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such personnel and shall assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 117 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 6 of 17 
 
 

subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

III. INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) 
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number 
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile 
Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising 
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period 
of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include contractual 
liability.    

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 118 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 7 of 17 
 
 
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 

Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those 
set forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 
CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any work or any 
of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with 
certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 119 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 8 of 17 
 
 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 
of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, 
costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of 
CITY’s choice.  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 120 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 9 of 17 
 
 
4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 

because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the 
termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause as 
provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, 
CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, 
as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be 
required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of CITY’s 
written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY 
pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability 
to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature 
of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 121 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 10 of 17 
 
 

diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default 
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time 
periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure the 
Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to 
cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from 
the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant 
additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii 
that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure 
period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 122 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 11 of 17 
 
 

CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute 
a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give 
the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 123 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 12 of 17 
 
 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 
Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement  
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this 
Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall 
be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 
shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use 
or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and 
Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, 
renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, 
calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and 
fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no 
cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain 
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 124 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 13 of 17 
 
 

Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all subcontractors and subconsultants 
working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in 
writing that CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and 
retain Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

 

 

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  

[INSERT Business Name of 
Consultant] 
[INSERT Business Address] 
Attn: [INSERT Name/Title of 
Consultant’s chief contact] 
Phone: [INSERT Phone Number] 
Fax:  [INSERT Fax Number] 
Email: [If available, INSERT e-mail or 
delete] 

 City of San Fernando 
Public Works Deparment 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn:  Matt Baumgardner, Director of 
Public Works 
Phone:  818-898-1237 
Fax: 818-361-6728 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 125 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 14 of 17 
 
 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully transmitted 
by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours 
after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed 
to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work required 
by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 
contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his 
or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 126 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 15 of 17 
 
 

the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing 
Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or 
obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 127 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 16 of 17 
 
 

amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding 
unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully 
executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two 
original counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 128 of 212



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
City Engineering Services 
Page 17 of 17 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO   [INSERT BUSINESS NAME OF 
CONSULTANT] 

By:    By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager   Name:  
    Title:  
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM     
      
By:      
 Rick R. Olivarez, City Attorney     

 

 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 129 of 212



ATTACHMENT "C"

April 29, 2022 

Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
Public Works Department 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, California 91340 

SUBJECT: City of San Fernando RFQ - Traffic Engineering Services 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

As indicated in the City of San Fernando's Request for Qualifications for Traffic 
Engineering Services, Tom Brohard and Associates is pleased to submit th is 
response and proposal to provide on call traffic engineering and transportation 
planning services to the City of San Fernando. I have gained an exceptional 
understanding of the assignment by providing these on call services to the 
community continuously since mid-2003. 

UNDERSTANDING OF THE REQUESTED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The City of San Fernando desires to retain a qualified consultant to provide 
professional advice regarding traffic and transportation issues in the community. 
Services include traffic engineering, transportation planning, and the review of 
various plans, reports, and other documents associated with capital improvement 
and development projects. The focus of the work is anticipated to be on traffic 
engineering services associated with citizen requests and City projects as well as 
on various transportation planning issues that could impact the community. 

The City desires that the consultant function as an extension of City staff, serving 
the community with minimal direction and instruction. From time . to time, 
attendance at various meetings and hearings to discuss traffic and transportation 
issues may be needed. However, it is understood that attendance at regular 
meetings of the City Council, Planning & Preservation Commission, and 
Transportation & Safety Commission will not be required as part of this 
assignment. Attendance at these meetings typically occurs remotely using Zoom 
or other methods. It is also understood that regularly scheduled office hours at 
City Hall are not required. 

METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN 

The on-call traffic engineering and transportation planning services for the City of 
San Fernando include technical assistance and support to City staff in review of 
plans and documents associated with various projects. This assignment entails 
completion of these various tasks in a timely manner. The consultant also serves 
as a reference and resource as questions arise regarding traffic engineering and 

81905 Mountain Vie111 Lane, La Quinta, Califomia 92253-7611 
Phone (160) 398-8885 

Email tbrohardO@gmaiLcom 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 130 of 212



Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 

transportation planning principles, polices, and practices. The scope of services 
for the City of San Fernando may include the following typical duties and tasks: 

► Review engineering plans and studies prepared for private developments 
and capital improvement projects. 

► Evaluate and recommend appropriate traffic calming strategies to address 
neighborhood concerns. 

► Review and analyze traffic operations including traffic signals, signs, 
striping , pavement markings, and curb markings. 

► Review work area traffic control plans. 

► Conduct/review traffic engineering and transportation planning studies. 

► Draft reports for Transportation & Safety Commission and City Council. 

► Attend Transportation & Safety Commission, City Council , and other 
meetings as may be requested. 

PRIOR WORK EXPERIENCE FOR THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

In addition to being available to assist City staff and to conduct traffic engineering 
investigations in response to various requests, the following traffic engineering 
studies and transportation planning review services are examples of some of the 
successfully completed assignments for the City of San Fernando since Tom 
Brohard began serving the community in mid-2003: 

Traffic Engineering: 

► As examples, conducted traffic engineering studies to determine the 
appropriate level of traffic control for these locations: 

o 2011 - Workman/O'Melveny Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2014 - Kalisher/O'Melveny Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2014 - Kalisher/Pico Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2015 - 1600 San Fernando Road Pedestrian Crossings 
o 2017 - Maclay Avenue/Coronel Street Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2017 - San Fernando Road/Kalisher Crosswalk Signing - Marking 
o 2018 - Library/Harding Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2020 - San Fernando Road/Lazard - Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2021 - 4th Street/Fermoore - Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2021 - 5th Street/Fermoore - Intersection Traffic Control 
o 2021 - Fermoore Street- Speed Hump Study 

2 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 131 of 212



Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 

► In 2003, authored the City's "Traffic Calming Report for Residential 
Streets" setting guidelines for traffic control devices such as multi-way 
stop signs as well as roadway features such as speed humps 

► In 2005, conducted Engineering and Traffic Surveys to establish 
enforceable speed limits on 32 City street segments to allow the use of 
radar for speed enforcement 

► In 2008, reviewed plans for the Maclay Avenue Streetscape Project 

► In 2012, extended the engineering and traffic surveys on 23 of the 
locations surveyed in 2005 and conducted new surveys on nine street 
segments with changed conditions 

► In 2014, developed plans to restripe Arroyo Street to provide additional 
on-street parking. 

► In 2015, conducted new engineering and traffic surveys on 23 street 
segments which were expiring 10 years after they were first conducted . 

► In 2018, conducted a geometric design review of the proposed Glenoaks 
Boulevard improvements, focusing on striping tapers and transitions, 
signing, and traffic signal modifications. 

► In 2022, completed new Engineering and Traffic Surveys on 32 City street 
segments including presentations to the Transportation & Safety 
Commission and to the City Council. 

Transportation Planning: 

► Reviewed and provided comments on traffic impact studies for various 
development projects as follows: 

o 2004 - San Fernando Corridors Specific Plan 
o 2005 - LAUSD Elementary School #8 
o 2005 - LAUSD Valley High School #5 
o 2006 - 900 Celis Street Mixed Use Project 
o 2011 - 700-753 San Fernando Road Mixed Use Project 
o 2013 - 12415 San Fernando Road Affordable Residential Units 
o 2015 - Harding - Fermoore Apartments 
o 2017 - San Fernando Corridors Amendment EIR 
o 2018 - 510 Park Avenue Industrial Warehouse 

► In 2018, drafted Speed Hump Policy for Alleys 

3 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 132 of 212



Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 

COMPANY INFORMATION 

Tom Brohard and Associates is a California Corporation that was formed in 2000 
to serve public and private clients by providing professional traffic engineering 
and transportation planning services. The firm has procured and will maintain 
insurance as required by the City. Tom Brohard and Associates will not do any 
work whatsoever for any client that would be subject to review by the City Traffic 
Engineer of San Fernando. The firm has a current business license issued by the 
City and will maintain it in good standing while serving San Fernando. 

KEY PERSONNEL 

Tom Brohard and Associates is pleased to offer the services of Mr. Tom Brohard , 
PE, to conduct the scope of services outlined above. Tom has over 50 years of 
professional engineering experience, most of which has occurred in California. 
He is licensed as both a Professional Civil Engineer in both California and Hawaii 
and as a Professional Traffic Engineer in California. Today, Tom serves "on call" 
as Consulting Traffic and Transportation Engineer for the City of San Fernando. 
Tom has sufficient time to serve the City of San Fernando at the same level as in 
prior years and he will continue to assist the City as requested. 

As shown on the enclosed resume, Tom has over 50 years of experience in 
traffic engineering and transportation planning. During his career in both the 
public and private sectors, he has served as City Traffic Engineer for the Cities of 
Bellflower, Bell Gardens, Huntington Beach, Indio, Lawndale, Los Alamitos, 
Oceanside, Paramount, Rancho Palos Verdes, Rolling Hills, Rolling Hills Estates, 
San Fernando, San Marcos, Santa Ana, and Westlake Village. While serving 
these communities, he has personally conducted hundreds of investigations of 
citizen , requests for various traffic control devices. During these assignments, 
Tom has succe$sfully pre$ented many traffic engineering reports in numerous 
meetings with City Councils and Commissions in these municipalities. 

REFERENCES 

Please contact the following regarding Tom Brohard's experience and service as 
Consulting Traffic Engineer and Transportation Planner to these cities: 

City of Huntington Beach - Bob Beardsley, Director of Public Works (Retired) -
rf.beardsley@outlook.com; (714) 282-1979 

City of Indio - Juan Raya, City Engineer - jraya@indio.org; (760) 541 -4225 

San Fernando - Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works/City Engineer, 
MBaumgardner@sfcity.org ; (818) 898-1237 

4 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 133 of 212



Mr. Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
On Call Traffic Engineering and Transportation Planning Services 
April 29, 2022 

FEE PROPOSAL 

Compensation for all work performed by Tom Brohard and for portal-to-portal 
travel time to and from the City (if necessary) is proposed to occur on a time and 
materials basis at a rate of $295 per hour. This hourly rate includes all indirect 
cost items such as telephone usage and mileage. The quoted hourly rate is 
effective for three years from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 and may be 
adjusted after that date. All subconsultant work involving collection of traffic data 
such as volume and speed measurements will be invoiced to the City at cost. 

CONTRACT TERMS 

Tom Brohard and Associates respectfully requests that the changes identified 
below be made in the City of San Fernando Professional Services Agreement 
(these changes were previously made in each of our prior Agreements): 

► Pages 3 and 4 - Replace "to the highest standards of CONSULTANT's 
profession" with "standards of practice ordinarily exercised by members of 
CONSUL TANT's profession under similar conditions." 

► Page 6 - Replace "and shall be endorsed to include contractual liability" with 
"and annual aggregate." 

► Page 8 - Replace '"'sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City" with 
"sole negligence, active negligence, or sole willful misconduct of an 
indemnified party in proportion to their established comparative liability." 

CONCLUSION 

I look forward to continuing to work with the City of San Fernando by providing 
on-call traffic engineering and transportation planning services. If you should 
need any other information or clarification of our response to your request for 
qualifications, please contact me at your convenience. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tom Brohard and Associates 

T--A*W_ 
Tom Brohard, PE 
Principal 

Enclosure 
Resume 

5 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 134 of 212



Licenses: 

Education: 

Experience: 

Tom Brohard, PE 

1975 / Professional Engineer/ California - Civil , No. 24577 
1977 / Professional Engineer/ California - Traffic, No. 724 
2006 I Professional Engineer/ Hawaii - Civil , No. 12321 

1969 / BSE / Civil Engineering / Duke University 

50+ Years 

Memberships: 1977 / Institute of Transportation Engineers - Fellow, Life 
1978 / Orange County Traffic Engineers Council - Chair 1982-1983 
1981 / American Public Works Association - Life Member 

Tom is a recognized expert in the field of traffic engineering and transportation planning . His 
background also includes responsibility for leading and managing the delivery of various 
contract services to numerous cities in Southern California. 

Tom has extensive experience in providing transportation planning and traffic engineering 
services to public agencies. In addition to conducting traffic engineering investigations for 
Los Angeles County from 1972 to 1978, he has previously served as City Traffic Engineer in 
the following communities: 

o Bellflower ... ............... ...... ..... ... ..................... 1997 - 1998 
o Bell Gardens ........... .... .. ... ....... .... ................. 1982 - 1995 
o Big Bear Lake ........................................ 2006 - 2015 
o Indio ................... .. ............................... 2005 - 2019 
o Huntington Beach .. .. .. ...... .... .. ... ... ................ 1998 - 2004 
o Lawndale ......................................... .... ... ...... 1973 - 1978 
o Los Alamitos ................. ............................... 1981 - 1982 
o Oceanside ................ ..... ... .... ................... ..... 1981 - 1982 
o Paramount .... ................................... .... .. .. .... 1982 - 1988 
o Rancho Palos Verdes ............ .. .............. ... ... 1973 - 1978 
o Rolling Hills ..... ... ....... .. ...... ..... ... ................... 1973 - 1978, 1985 - 1993 
o Rolling Hills Estates ..................................... 1973 - 1978, 1984 - 1991 
o San Fernando ............................. . .......... 2004 - Present 
o San Marcos .................................................. 1981 
o Santa Ana ....... ..................... ........................ 1978 - 1981 
o Westlake Village .............. .. ..... .. ................... 1983 - 1994 

During these assignments, Tom has supervised City staff and directed other consultants 
including traffic engineers and transportation planners, traffic signal and street lighting 
personnel, and signing, striping, and marking crews. He has secured over $10 million in grant 
funding for various improvements. He has managed and directed many traffic and 
transportation studies and projects. While serving these communities, he has personally 
conducted investigations of hundreds of citizen requests for various traffic control devices. 
Tom has also successfully presented numerous engineering reports at City Council, Planning 
Commission , and Traffic Commission meetings in these and other municipalities. 

Tom Brohard and Associates 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 135 of 212



Tom Brohard, PE, Page 2 
In his 14 years of service to the City of Indio, Tom accomplished the following : 

❖ Oversaw preparation and adoption of the 2008 Circulation Element Update of the 
General Plan including development of Year 2035 buildout traffic volumes, revised 
and simplified arterial roadway cross sections, and reduction in acceptable Level of 
Service criteria under certain conditions. 

❖ Oversaw preparation of fact sheets/design exceptions to reduce shoulder widths on 
Jackson Street and on Monroe Street over 1-10 as well as justifications for protected
permissive left turn phasing at 1-10 on-ramps, the first such installations in Caltrans 
District 8 in Riverside County; reviewed plans and provided assistance during 
construction of both $2 million projects to install traffic signals and widen three of four 
ramps at these two interchanges under Caltrans encroachment permits. 

❖ Reviewed traffic signal, signing, striping, and work area traffic control plans for the 
County's $45 million 1-10 Interchange Improvement Project at Jefferson Street. 

❖ Reviewed traffic impact analyses for Project Study Reports evaluating different 
alternatives for buildout improvements of the 1-10 Interchanges at Jefferson Street, 
Monroe Street, Jackson Street and Golf Center Parkway. 

❖ Oversaw preparation of plans, specifications, and contract documents and provided 
construction assistance for over 70 traffic signal installations and modifications. 

❖ Reviewed and approved over 2,000 work area traffic control plans as well as signing 
and striping plans for all City and developer funded roadway improvement projects. 

❖ Oversaw preparation of a City-wide traffic safety study of conditions at all schools. 

❖ Obtained $47 ,000 grant from the California Office of Traffic Safety and implemented 
the City's Traffic Collision Database System. Annually reviews "Top 25" collision 
locations and provides traffic engineering recommendations to reduce collisions. 

❖ Prepared over 1,500 work orders directing City forces to install, modify, and/or remove 
traffic signs, pavement and curb markings, and roadway striping. 

❖ Oversaw preparation of engineering and traffic surveys to establish enforceable speed 
limits on over 500 street segments. 

❖ Reviewed and approved traffic impact studies for more than 35 major projects and 
special events including the annual Coachella and Stagecoach Music Festivals. 

❖ Developed and implemented the City's Golf Cart Transportation Program. 

Since forming Tom Brohard and Associates in 2000, Tom has reviewed many traffic impact 
reports and environmental documents for various development projects. He has provided 
expert witness services and also prepared traffic studies for public agencies and private 
sector clients. 

Tom Brohard and Associates 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 136 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 137 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 138 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
  Manual Fabian, Civil Engineering Assistant II 
   
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Award a Construction Contract for the Reservoir 2A/5 Site 

Improvements Project, Plan No. P-738 and Job Specifications Job No. 7611 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $364,125 from FS Contractors, Inc. for 

construction of these improvements;  
 

b. Approve a construction contract with FS Contractors, Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed 
$364,125 (Attachment “A” - Contract No. 2092);  

 
c. Authorize the City Manager to execute change orders for an amount not-to-exceed 10% of 

the contract amount, or $36,413, to cover costs of unforeseen conditions and execute all 
related documents;  

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 8171 (Attachment “B”) to approve amending Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 

Capital Improvement Budget by $400,538 from the Water Enterprise Reserve Balance for the 
Well No. 2A, Well No. 3, and Lower Reservoir Upgrades Budget; and 

 
e. Approve the Notice of Exemption for the construction of the Reservoir 2A/5 Site 

Improvements Project and direct the City Clerk to file it with the Los Angeles County 
Recorder’s Office (Attachment “C”). 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. In February 2022, Staff engaged the City’s on-call water engineer, CWE, to design the site 
improvements at 12900 Dronfield Avenue, site of Reservoir 2A and 5, to prepare for the 
installation of a new nitrate treatment unit. CWE completed the engineering plans and bid 
specifications for the improvements project in June 2022. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 139 of 212



Consideration to Award a Construction Contract for the Reservoir 2A/5 Site Improvements Project, Plan 
No. P-738 and Job Specifications Job No. 7611 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
2. On June 23, 2002, the City released a Notice of Inviting Bids to obtain bid proposals for the 

site improvements. 
 

3. On July 14, 2022, one bid was received and opened by the City Clerk. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The Reservoir 2A/5 Site Improvements Project will consist of extending an existing concrete pad 
to place the new nitrate treatment unit, perform several electrical improvements and upgrades 
to existing panels, reroute existing water lines, and modify the gate at the entrance of the 
property. These improvements are necessary so that the site is prepared to receive the new 
nitrate treatment system to be installed for Well No. 3. The Contractor will also be responsible 
for connecting the nitrate treatment system to the modified piping and electrical system 
improvements and ensure that the treatment system is fully operational upon completion of 
construction. 
 
Bid Analysis. 
Staff analyzed the bid received and determined that FS Contractors, Inc. met all the requirements 
for the bid submittal. The table below summarizes the bid received: 
 

RANK BIDDER BID AMOUNT 

1 FS Contractors, Inc. $364,125.00 
 
Project Schedule. 
The project is expected to begin in late August 2022 and completed by November 2022.  Once 
these improvements are completed, the City can move forward with installing the nitrate 
treatments system at Well No. 3. The schedule for this work has been accelerated due to the 
urgent nature of completing the project so that the City can cease importing water from the 
Metropolitan Water District. Any delays to the start of the construction of these improvements 
could result in corresponding delays to the start-up of the nitrate treatment system. The 
importation of water will continue until the nitrate treatment system is fully operational and 
permitted. 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
Pursuant to the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), this project is 
considered Categorically Exempt under Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 
15301, as a Class 1(b) exemption for existing facilities of publicly-owned utilities.   
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 140 of 212



Consideration to Award a Construction Contract for the Reservoir 2A/5 Site Improvements Project, Plan 
No. P-738 and Job Specifications Job No. 7611 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The bid result came in slightly below the engineer’s estimate of $373,350. Funding for this project 
will come from the unassigned fund balance of the Water Fund, as follows: 
 

SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
Water Fund Reserve Balance 070-2400 $ 400,538 
 

  
 

Total Sources:  $ 400,538 
 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Construction 070-385- 0859-4600 $ 364,125 
Contingency (10%) 070-385- 0859-4600 $ 36,143 
Total Uses:  $ 400,538 

 
The appropriation of Water Fund reserves will reduce the overall water fund balance from 
$626,634 to $226,096. However, the City has received notice of a $750,000 grant award from the 
California Department of Water Resources (DWR) (Attachment “D”). In accordance with the City’s 
Comprehensive Financial Policy and Grant Management Policy, these grant funds may not be 
appropriated until a final grant agreement is executed with the Los Angeles County Flood Control 
District (LACFCD). Staff anticipates presenting a grant agreement with LACFCD to City Council for 
consideration and approval within the next 60 to 90 days.  Upon approval of the grant agreement, 
the $750,000 in grant funds will be appropriated to this project and the Water Fund reserve will 
be replenished. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to execute a 
construction contract with FS Contractors, Inc. and all recommended actions necessary to 
successfully execute the project. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2092, including: 

Exhibit A: Bid Proposal 
Exhibit B: List of Subcontractors 
Exhibit C: Bid Bond 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 141 of 212



Consideration to Award a Construction Contract for the Reservoir 2A/5 Site Improvements Project, Plan 
No. P-738 and Job Specifications Job No. 7611 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Exhibit D: Payment Bond (to be purchased after award of contract) 
Exhibit E: Performance Bond (to be purchased after award of contract) 

B. Resolution No. 8171 
C. Notice of Exemption 
D. DWR Grant Award Letter to the Los Angeles County Flood Control District 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 142 of 212



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2092 

 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

FS CONTRACTORS, INC. 
RESERVOIR 2A/5 – SITE IMPROVEMENT, 12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE  

PLANS (P-738) AND SPECIFICATIONS (JOB NO. 7611) 
 

THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 
1st  day of August 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter, “CITY” or “Owner”) and FS Contractors, 
Inc. (hereinafter, “CONTRACTOR” or “Contractor”). For the purposes of this Agreement, 
CITY and CONTRACTOR may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  
The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY or CONTRACTOR interchangeably as 
appropriate. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, CITY requires construction services for RESERVOIR 2A/5 – SITE 

IMPROVEMENT, 12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE PLANS (P-738) AND SPECIFICATIONS (JOB NO. 
7611) (hereinafter, the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, CITY issued notice inviting competitive bids for the Project on  

June 23, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, following the opening of bids on July 24, 2022, CONTRACTOR was 
determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando approved the award of this 

Contract to CONTRACTOR at its Regular Meeting of August 1, 2022 under Agenda Item No. 
____.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

 
I. 

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
1.1 The complete Contract consists of the following documents (“Contract Documents”) 

which are incorporated in this Contract by their reference: 
 

a) The competitive bids solicitation packet entitled “Reservoir 2A/5 – Site 
Improvement, 12900 Dronfield Avenue Plans (P-738) and Specifications (Job No. 
7611)” issued June 23, 2022, inclusive of the Invitation to Bid entitled “Notice of 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 143 of 212



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

Inviting Bids” dated, June 23, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Bid Solicitation Packet”); 
b) CONTRACTOR’s submitted Bid Proposal, dated July 14, 2022, which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
c) CONTRACTOR’s submitted List of Subcontractors, dated July 14,2022, which is 

hereto as Exhibit “B”; 
d) This Contract (Contract No. 2092); 
e) CONTRACTOR’s Bid Bond dated July 14, 2022, which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “C”; 
f) CONTRACTOR’s Payment Bond No. __________, dated _________, 2022, a 

true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D”; 
g) CONTRACTOR’s Performance Bond No. __________, dated ________, 2022, a 

true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”; 
h) All Drawings; 
i) Specifications set forth in the Bid Solicitation Packet; 
j) Supplementary and Special Conditions to the Bid Solicitation Packet, if any; 
k) All documents made a part of this Contract under the terms of the 

Bid Solicitation Packet; and 
l) All addenda; 
m) All Change Orders, if any, approved by CITY in compliance with terms of the 

Contract, the San Fernando Municipal Code and applicable State law. 
 

II. 
WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

 
2.1  The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, 

transportation, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and 
workmanlike manner, R E S E R V O I R  2 A / 5  –  S I T E  I M P R O V E M E N T ,  1 2 9 0 0  
D R O N F I E L D  A V E N U E  P L A N S  ( P - 7 3 8 )  A N D  S P E C I F I C A T I O N S  ( J O B  
N O .  7 6 1 1 )  as called for, and in the manner designated in, and in strict conformity 
with the Contract Documents. It is understood and agreed that the tools, equipment, 
apparatus, facilities, labor, transportation, and material shall be furnished and the 
Work performed and completed as required in the Contract Documents under the sole 
direction and control of the CONTRACTOR, and subject to inspection and approval of 
the CITY, or its representatives. The CITY hereby designates as its representative for 
the purpose of this Contract the following named person: The Director of Public Works 
and Utilities. 

 
The Work is generally described as follows: 

 
The site improvements to Reservoir 2A/5, 12900 Dronfield Avenue, as shown in the 
Drawings and more fully described in Notice of Inviting Bids. 
 
The Contract Documents which define the Work covered by this Agreement are 
those prepared by the Design Engineer CWE and filed in the office of the City Clerk 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 144 of 212



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

and identified by the signatures of the parties to this Agreement. 
 

The Work was designed by and the Contract Documents were prepared by CWE 
herein referred to as the Design Engineer. 

 
III.  

CONTRACT PRICE 
 

3.1 The CITY agrees to pay, and the CONTRACTOR agrees to accept, in full payment for the 
work, above agreed to be done, the sum of THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED 
TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS ($364,125.00) for the Project (hereinafter, the “Bid Price” or 
“Contract Price”). 

 
IV. 

COMPLETION DATE 
 
4.1 The Project shall be commenced on the date specified in the Notice to Proceed. The 

total project shall be completed THIRTY FIVE (35) working days after the date of the 
Notice to Proceed. The terms “workday” or “working day” mean any day of the week 
excluding Saturday, Sunday or any federal holiday. 

 
V 

NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF 
 

5.1 Any notice from one party to the other under the Contract shall be in writing and shall 
be dated and signed by the Party giving such notice or by a duly authorized 
representative of such Party. Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpose 
whatsoever unless served in the following manner, namely: 

 
a) If the notice is given to the CITY, by personal delivery thereof, or by depositing the 

same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and 
certified; addressed to the CITY at: 

 
City of San Fernando Public Works Department 
Attn: Director of Public Works  
City of San Fernando City Hall  
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

 
b) If the notice is given to the CONTRACTOR, by personal delivery thereof to said 

CONTRACTOR or to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project, or by 
depositing the same in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, postage 
prepaid, and certified; addressed to the CONTRACTOR at: 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 145 of 212



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

 
FS Contractors, Inc. 
Attn: Angel Fierros 
14838 Bledsoe Street 
Sylmar, CA 91342 
818-838-6040 

 
c) If the notice is given to the surety or any other person, by personal delivery to such 

surety or other person, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, 
enclosed in a sealed envelope, addressed to such surety or other person, as the case 
may be, at the address of such surety or person last communicated by it to the party 
giving the notice, postage prepaid and certified.  

 
VI. 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 

6.1 Liquidated damages as provided for in the General Conditions of the Contract shall be in 
the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for each and every day as defined therein for 
each different scope of work as defined by the Base Bid and each change order except 
as otherwise specified in the General Conditions. 

 
6.2 It is agreed by the parties to this Contract that time is of the essence. In the event all the 

Work is not completed before or upon the expiration of the time limit as set in the 
Contract Documents, or within any time extensions that may have been granted, 
damage will be sustained by the City; and that it may be impracticable to determine the 
actual amount of damage by reason of such delay. Accordingly, it is agreed that the 
Contractor shall pay to the City as damages the amount set forth for each and every day’s 
delay in finishing the Work in excess of the number of days specified. Liquidated 
damages shall be paid at a rate of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per day unless 
otherwise stated in the Contract Documents. The parties expressly agree that the 
liquidated damage clause found in the Contract Documents is reasonable under the 
circumstances existing at the time the Contract was made. The City shall have the right 
to deduct the amount of liquidated damages from any money due or to become due the 
Contractor. 

 
6.3 In addition, the City shall have the right to charge to the Contractor and to deduct from 

the final or progress payments for the Work the actual cost to the City of legal, 
engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other expenses, which are directly 
chargeable to the Contract and which accrue during the period of such delay, except that 
the cost of final inspection and preparation of the final estimate shall not be included in 
the charges. 

 
6.4 Exclusions: The Contractor shall not be liable for liquidated damages or delays caused by 

the removal or relocation of utilities when such removal or relocation is the 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 146 of 212



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

responsibility of the City or the owner of the utility under Government Code section 
4215. 

VII. 
PREVAILING WAGE 

 

7.1 Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of 
the Department of Industrial Relations in accordance with Labor Code Section 1773 
are on file at the CITY, and copies are available for inspection at that office to any 
interested party on request. Bidders shall be responsible for verifying with the Director 
of the Department of Industrial Relations that all such copies of the prevailing rate 
provided by the CITY are current and accurate. The requirement to pay the wage 
rate so specified is further detailed in the General Conditions. Copies of the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages may also be obtained from the Department of Industrial 
Relations, P.O. Box 420603, San Francisco, CA 94142-0603, Attn: Chief, Division of Labor 
Statistics and Research or online at: 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm. 

 
7.2 Hours of Labor: Eight-hour labor constitutes a legal day's work. The Contractor shall 

forfeit, as penalty to the Owner, twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each worker employed 
in the execution of the contract by him or by any subcontractor, for each calendar day 
during which any worker is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours in 
any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week, except as 
permitted by the provisions of Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing with 
Section 1810) of the Labor Code of the State of California. 

 
7.3 Apprentices: In accordance with the provisions of Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code, and 

in accordance with the regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council, properly 
registered, apprentices may be employed in the prosecution of the work. 

 
Information relative to number of apprentices, identifications, wages, hours of 
employment and standards of working conditions shall be obtained from the Director of 
the Department of Industrial Relations, who is the Administrative Officer of the California 
Apprenticeship Council. 

 
7.4 Prohibited Employment Discrimination: Attention is directed to Section 1735 of the 

California Labor Code, which reads as follows: 
 

"A contractor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons upon public 
works on any basis listed in subdivision (a) of Section 12940 of the Government 
Code, as those bases are defined in Sections 12926 and 12926.1 of the Government 
Code, except as otherwise provided in Section 12940 of the Government Code. 
Every contractor for public works who violates this section is subject to all the 
penalties imposed for a violation of this chapter." 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 147 of 212

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm


  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

 
7.5 Workers' Compensation Insurance: In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, 

Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 (commencing with Section 1860) and Chapter 4, Part 1, 
Division 4 (commencing with Section 3700) of the California Labor Code, the Contractor 
is required to secure the payment of compensation to his employees and shall for that 
purpose obtain and keep in effect adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. 

 
The undersigned Contractor is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, 
which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation 
claims or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and 
will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the Work in 
this contract. 

 
7.6 Security for Compensation: The Contractor hereby stipulates that the provisions of 

Section 1775 of the California Labor Code will be complied with. The Contractor further 
agrees to secure the payment of compensation to his employees in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code. 

 
7.7 Contractor Claims Against the City: Effective January 1, 1991, the California Legislature 

enacted a requirement that all contract claims of $375,000.00 or less on local 
government public works contracts must be submitted to mediation and judicial 
arbitration. Article 1.5 (Sections 20104 through 20104.6, inclusive) of Chapter 1 of Part 
3 of the Public Contract Code concerning Resolution of Construction Claims, is hereby 
incorporated into this agreement. See Supplementary Conditions for a summary of the 
timing provisions in Section 20104 through 20104.6. 

 
7.8 Contractor's License: The Contractor declares that it possesses a valid California 

Contractor's License of the required class at the time of signing this Agreement. The 
Contractor shall affirm its license number, classification and expiration date on this 
Agreement. 

 
The following statement is included in accordance with Section 7030 of the California 
Business and Professions Code: "Contractors are required by law to be licensed and 
regulated by the Contractors State License Board. Any questions concerning a 
Contractor may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors State License Board, 
P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, California 95826." 

 
VIII.  

CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION 
 
8.1 By the execution of this Contract, CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that it is registered with 

the California Department of Industrial Relations as required pursuant to Labor Code 
section 1725.5 (contractor registration). 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 148 of 212



  CONTRACT NO. 2092 

 
IX. 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

9.1 Terms used in this Contract, which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions, will 
have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 

9.2 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the 
party sought to be bound; and specifically but without limitation, moneys that may 
become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except 
to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless 
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment 
will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract 
Documents. 

 
9.3 The Owner and the CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and 

legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 
 

 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
      Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

 [CONTRACTOR]: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
 
Title: ____________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 149 of 212



CTIY OF SAN FERNANDO 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSAL 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

HONORABLE MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

The undersigned declares that this proposal was prepared by carefully examining the 
location of the proposed work, the Plans, the Specifications, and the Contract 
Documents entitled: 

RESERVOIRS 2A/ 5 - SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE 

PROJECT NO. 7611, PLAN NO. P-738 

The undersigned hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, 
transportation, and services to perform all work required and to complete said work 
within thirty-five (35) working days after the commencement date stated in the 
Notice to Proceed. All work shall be performed in accordance with the Plans, 
Specifications, and Contract Documents, including the Special Provisions and Technical 
Provisions, for the prices set forth in the bid schedule. 

7/14/22 

Dated 

Revised Addendum #1 (7/6/22) 

FS Contractors, Inc. 

Bidder 

Signature 

Jose Angel Fierros 
Name (Print/Type) 

President 

Title 

P-1

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2092

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 150 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2092

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 151 of 212



EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2092

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 152 of 212



LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

The bidder is required to fill in the following blanks in accordance with the provisions of Section 
4100 to 4108, inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of California. 

Name under which subcontractor is licensed: VENCO ELECTRIC. INC. 

Address of office, mill or shop: 2360 Sturgis Road, Ste #D Oxnard, CA 93030 

Specific description of subcontract: __ E_le_ ct_ r _ic_al ________________ _

License No.: 446770 Amount of Subcontract: 90 000 
_ ____cc...;___....:.__ _______ . _..;_..;..,...;.__;_;_ ______ _ 

DIR Registration Number: 1000008330 Expiration Date: __ 6_,_/_3-'
0/'--2_3 _______ _ 

Name under which subcontractor is licensed: 
------------------

Address of office, mill or shop: -----------------------

Specific description of subcontract: ____________________ _ 

License No.: ___________ Amount of Subcontract: _________ _ 

DIR Registration Number: ______ Expiration Date: ------------

Name under which subcontractor is licensed: -----------------

Address of office, mill or shop: ----------------------

Specific description of subcontract: ---------------------

License No.: Amount of Subcontract: 
----------- ----------

DIR Registration Number: ______ Expiration Date: ___________ _ 

Name under which subcontractor is licensed: _________________ _ 

Address of office, mill or shop: ----------------------

Specific description of subcontract: ---------------------

License No.: ___________ .Amount of Subcontract:----------

DIR Registration Number: ______ Expiration Date: ___________ _ 

P-7 

EXHIBIT "B
CONTRACT NO. 2092

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 153 of 212



BIDDER'S BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
that we, __ F _S_C_ o_n_t _ra_c_t _o_rs-'-, _ln_c_. __________________ as Principal, 
and RLI Insurance Company as Surety, 
are held and firmly bound unto the City of San Fernando in the sum of ________ _ 
Ten Percent of the Total Amount of the Bid ($ 10% ) 
to be paid to the said City of its certain Attorney, its successors and assigns; for the payment of 
which sum well and truly made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, 
successors or assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the certain proposal of the 
above bounden FS Constractors, Inc 
to construct RESERVOIR 2N5 - SITE IMPROVEMENT 12900 DRONFIELD AVENUE JOB NO. 7611. PLAN NO. P-738 

(insert names of streets and limits to be improved) dated July 14th, 2022 is accepted 
by the City of San Fernando, and if the above bounden his heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, shall duly enter into and execute a contract for such construction, and 
shall execute and deliver the two bonds described within ten (10) days (not including Sunday) 
from the date of the mailing of a notice to the above bounden FS Contractors, Inc 
by and from the said City of San Fernando that said contract is ready for execution, then this 
obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals this __ 1_4_th ___ day of 
July , 2022 

Principal FS Contractors, Inc. 

By_++&-'-· -�---t1.-=-, -1---�-' Vl_�__;:, __ _

Its._�-'--�"__,�,::;__:;l-'="--��-------=---���- Its Pietro Micciche, Attorney-In-Fact 

Surety signatures on this bond must be acknowledged before Notary Publics, and a sufficiently 
power of attorney must be attached to the bond to verify the authority of any party signing on 
behalf of a surety. 

All notices and demands to the surety shall be delivered via first class mail to the following: 

RLI Surety Company 

9025 North Lindbergh Drive 

Peoria, IL 61615 

P-4

EXHIBIT "C"
CONTRACT NO. 2092

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 154 of 212



ATTACHMENT “B” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8171 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2022-2023 ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to 
the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 
and expenditures of the current City budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Well No. 2A, Well No. 3, and Lower Reservoir Upgrades Project 

requires additional funding through Water Enterprise Funds to extend an existing concrete pad 
to place the new nitrate treatment unit, perform several electrical improvements and upgrades 
to existing panels, reroute existing water lines, and modify the gate at the entrance of the 
property; and 

 
WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for the Fiscal Year beginning 

July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s Office, was 
adopted on June 21, 2022. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:  
 

SECTION 1.   The following adjustments are made to the City Budget: 
 

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND: WELL NO. 2A, WELL NO. 3, AND LOWER RESERVOIR UPGRADES 
PROJECT 

 
Increase in Expenditures $400,358 
Account No. 070-385-0859-4600 
 

SECTION 2.   The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause a 
certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 1st day of August, 2022. 

 
 
                                      _________________________________ 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 155 of 212



RES. NO. 8171 
 

 2 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8171 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
1st day of August, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:   
 
NOES:   
  
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of August, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 156 of 212



ATTACHMENT “C” 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

 
TO: County Clerk/Registrar-Recorder 

County of Los Angeles 
Environmental Filings 
12400 E. Imperial Hwy 
Norwalk, CA 90650 

FROM: Public Works Department 
City of San Fernando 
117 N. Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 92340 

 
NO FEE REQUIRED (Gov’t Code Sec 6103 & 27383) Recorded For The Benefit Of The City Of San Fernando 

 
 

 
Project Title and Location (including county): 
Reservoir 2A/5 Site Improvements Project, Job No. 7611, Plan No. P-738  
Location: 12900 Dronfield Avenue, Sylmar, CA 91342 
 
Project Description: 
The project involves extending an existing concrete pad to place the new nitrate treatment 
unit, perform several electrical improvements and upgrades to existing panels, reroute existing 
water lines, and modify the gate at the entrance of the property. All improvements are to be 
completed within an existing reservoir facility within a publicly-owned water utility. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: 
City of San Fernando - Public Works Department  

Name of Person/Agency Carrying Out Project: 
Matthew Baumgardner, P.E., Director of Public Works / City of San Fernando 

Exempt Status: (Check one)

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080 (b) (1); 15268); 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080 (b) (3); 15269(a)); 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080 (b) (4); 15269(b) (c)); 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080 (b) (4); 15269(b) (c)); 
 Categorical Exemption: Section: 15311  Class:   1(b)  
 Statutory Exemption: Section:       Class:       

Reasons why project is exempt: 
The work is considered Categorically Exempt under Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations, Section 15301, as a Class 1(b) exemption for existing facilities of publicly-owned 
utilities and has no significant effects on the environment. 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person and Phone Number: 
Matthew Baumgardner, P.E., Director of Public Works 
(818) 898-1222; mbaumgardner@sfcity.org 
  
Prepared and filed by the City of San Fernando Public Works Department by: 

                                    Matthew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works   
Signature      Printed Name and Title     Date   
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 157 of 212

mailto:mbaumgardner@sfcity.org


STATE OF CALIFORNIA – CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
P.O. Box 942836 
Sacramento, CA 94236-0001 
(916) 653-5791

June 20, 2022 

Matthew Frary 
Principal Engineer 
Los Angeles County Flood Control District 
900 S. Fremont Ave 
Alhambra, CA 91803 

Award Notification for Phase 3 Urban and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant Program 

Dear Matthew Frary: 

Congratulations! We are pleased to inform you that the following projects, filed by Los Angeles 
County Flood Control District, on behalf of Los Angeles Funding Area, have been awarded $5,000,000 
by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for the Urban and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant 
Program:  

• $98,000 was awarded for Grant Administration
• $714,000 was awarded to the Nyeland Avenue 8-inch Mainline
• $714,000 was awarded to the Garden Acres MWC Backup Well
• $750,000 was awarded to the Well 3 Nitrate Removal Treatment System
• $366,000 was awarded to the Emergency and supplemental interconnection(s) to neighboring

utilities and Emergency Power Supplies
• $750,000 was awarded to the Morada Well Rehabilitation Project
• $300,000 was awarded to the Well 4A Rehabilitation Project
• $300,000 was awarded to the Grass Replacement and Program
• $508,000 was awarded to the Arundo Mapping and Priority Removal
• $500,000 was awarded to the Rural Water Supply Reliability

Costs incurred after June 10, 2022 (DWR approval date of the awards) will be eligible for grant 
reimbursement. This award is conditioned upon the execution of a Grant Agreement between DWR 
and your agency. Please see the Agreement Template for your reference. 

Your timely attention is directed to the following requirements: 

Within 14 calendar days of the date of this award letter: 

Award Acceptance - Please submit a letter or e-mail signed by the authorized representative 
(agreement signatory) confirming your agency as the Grantee to accept the grant award in the amount 
of $5000000. This letter/e-mail should also confirm the proper billing address for your organization 
(where reimbursement checks will be sent).  

Electronic Signatures - DWR uses DocuSign to process signatures electronically to expedite all 
grant-related documents requiring a signature. In order for DWR to send documents to you via 
DocuSign, we need your permission and consent. If you consent to the use of DocuSign, please 
send DWR a letter on official letterhead signed by the authorized representative, consenting to the 
use of DocuSign for all transactions related to this award (see attached sample). If you prefer not 

ATTACHMENT "D"August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 158 of 212

https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Water-Basics/Drought/Files/Resources/UCMB_AgreementTemplateDrought.pdf


to use electronic signatures, DWR can send documents for original (wet) signatures via email or 
mail, but this can delay the process significantly, especially during situations such as the COVID-
19 public health emergency. 
 
Within 30 calendar days of the date of this award letter: 
 
Authorizing Resolution – Please submit an authorizing resolution for this agreement within the next 30 
days of this letter (see attached sample language). Sample language can be found on page 16 of the 
Guidelines and Proposal Solicitation Package.  

 
Following receipt of the award acceptance, DWR will provide you with a draft agreement and work 
with you to finalize and execute the agreement.  
 
Your timely attention to these requirements is critical to execute the Grant Agreement; failure to do so 
may result in DWR revoking the grant award. Please submit the required information in the time periods 
specified to urbandrought@water.ca.gov.  
 
Please contact Ashley Gilreath at ashley.gilreath@water.ca.gov or (916) 902-6717 or Stephanie 
Miura at stephanie.miura@water.ca.gov or (916) 902-7508 for any questions regarding the 
required materials. 
 
Again, congratulations to you and your Local Partner Sponsors on this well-deserved grant award.  
Our team appreciates your time and effort to respond to this grant solicitation process and we will 
be reaching out in coming months to get your feedback. We look forward to working with you to 
complete these drought relief projects to build water resilience in your communities. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 

 
Carmel Brown, P.E.,  
Manager, Financial Assistance Branch 
Division of Regional Assistance 
 

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 159 of 212

https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Water-Basics/Drought/Files/Resources/Final_GLPSP_accessible.pdf
mailto:urbandrought@water.ca.gov
mailto:ashley.gilreath@water.ca.gov
mailto:stephanie.miura@water.ca.gov


This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 160 of 212



A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION MAKING 
CERTAIN FINDINGS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE, AND APPROVING AN ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT 
WITH WILLDAN ENERGY SOLUTIONS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
CERTAIN ENERGY RELATED IMPROVEMENTS AT CITY FACILITIES
(THIS ITEM HAS BEEN CONTINUED TO A DATE UNCERTAIN)

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 161 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 162 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 163 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 164 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To:  Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
  
Date: August 1, 2022 

 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map 

No. 2022-001 For a Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five 
Parcels For Individual Ownership in the Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 
12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062 

   
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council:  
 
a. Conduct a public hearing; and  

 
b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8172 (Attachment “A”) approving Tentative 

Tract Map No. 2022-001, for a proposed subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel divided into five 
parcels for individual ownership in the Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill 
Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062, subject to the Conditions of Approval 
included as Exhibit “A” to the resolution.  
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On March 3, 1989, a Certificate of Completion was issued to the property owner for 

completion and compliance pertaining to the development of the shopping center.  
 

2. On April 27, 2022, Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Chris Shane of Gryphon Capital, 
LLC, submitted an application for a Site Plan Review involving the construction of a 460 
square-foot outdoor patio dining area and façade improvements at Parcel 1 (multi-tenant 
building with Starbucks) and construction of a 536-square-foot outdoor patio dining area and 
façade improvements at Parcel 4 (multi-tenant building with WaBa Grill).  The application was 
approved by staff on May 27, 2022.  The approved site plan and rendering showing the façade 
improvements are included as Attachment “B”   

 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 165 of 212



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 For a 
Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five Parcels For Individual Ownership in the 
Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062  
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
3. On April 27, 2022, Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. on behalf of the property owner and Target 

Corporation, submitted applications for a façade and site improvements for the former Sam’s 
Club building, and a Tentative Tract Map for subdivision of the site for individual ownership.  
 

4. On June 15, 2022, an application from Target for a façade remodel and site improvements 
involving a 1,340-square-foot addition and a new 963 square-foot canopy to the front of the 
existing building, and a new 3,168 square-foot carport covering 12 parking stalls was 
approved by staff. The approved site plan and rendering showing the façade improvement 
are included as Attachment “C”   

 
5. On July 11, 2022, the Planning the Preservation Commission held a meeting to review 

proposed Tentative Tract Map (TTM) No. 2022-001. The Commission voted 4-0-1 
recommending City Council approve the proposed subdivision.  
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
In accordance with the provisions established in the Subdivision Map Act and the City’s 
Subdivision Ordinance (Chapter 78), the applicant has submitted a request for approval of TTM 
No. 2022-001 for the subdivision of a 9.29-acre site (project site) into five parcels to allow 
individual ownership and/or sale of each parcel.  The project site contains three freestanding 
businesses (El Pollo Loco, KFC, and Taco Bell), several businesses in a multi-tenant building, and 
a vacant former Sam’s Club building located at 12920 Foothill Blvd. The proposed subdivision 
would allow each freestanding business to have individual ownership of land allocated to their 
specific business. A drawing showing the proposed subdivision for the Tentative Tract Map is 
included as Attachment “D”.  A location map with the project site outlined in yellow is provided 
below.   
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 166 of 212



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 For a 
Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five Parcels For Individual Ownership in the 
Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062  
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Location Map - General Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consistency. 
The San Fernando Airport formerly occupied the project site until the adoption of the General 
Plan in 1987 when it was designated for commercial use.  The General Plan Land Use designation 
of the project site is Commercial (COM), which is consistent with the existing commercial uses on 
the project site.  The proposed subdivision does not change the existing commercial use of the 
project site, except for providing an opportunity for individual ownership of the land that the 
existing businesses are located on, and therefore, is consistent with the General Plan.  
 
Zoning Compliance. 
The zoning for the project site is Precise Development Overlay (PD). According to the 
development standards listed in the San Fernando Zoning Code Section 106-643, the provisions 
of the zone to which the PD zone is added shall apply. For this property, the underlying zone 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 167 of 212



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 For a 
Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five Parcels For Individual Ownership in the 
Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062  
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
for this site is Commercial (C-2) with minimum lot sizes at 5,000 square-feet (0.11 acres) and no 
lot dimensions requirements. The proposed parcels satisfy the zoning requirements.  
 
Table 1 below provides a breakdown of each proposed parcel.  
 

Table 1 – Proposed Parcels 
Proposed Parcel 

Number Existing/Proposed Use Required 
Parcel Size 

Proposed Parcel 
Size 

Parcel No. 1 Existing El Pollo Loco 0.11 acres 0.66 acres 
Parcel No. 2  Existing Multi-Tenant Building  0.11 acres 0.57 acres 
Parcel No. 3 Existing KFC 0.11 acres 0.68 acres 
Parcel No. 4 Existing Taco Bell  0.11 acres 0.59 acres 
Parcel No. 5  Proposed Target Store 0.11 acres 6.79 acres 

 
Conditions of Approval. 
Conditions of approval for the proposed TTM is included as Exhibit “A” to the resolution.  Most 
of the conditions are standard requirements such as having the applicant acknowledging and 
accepting the conditions, indemnify the City, and compliance and expiration of the map. There 
are few conditions relating to improving the existing on-site circulation and ensuring clear 
maintenance responsibility of the common area and shared access and parking.  
 
On-Site Circulation Improvements. 
Staff has been in discussion with the existing property owner regarding improvements to on-site 
circulation to address some existing traffic concerns (traffic spill onto Foothill Boulevard, difficulty 
entering and exiting, etc.) in this shopping center.  The property owner informed staff that their 
authority to modify the existing center to improve on-site circulation is very limited due to the 
physical characteristics of the site and restrictions contained in current lease contracts. To 
address traffic concerns while recognizing to the property owner’s limitation, a condition is 
included to require the property owner to submit an on-site circulation improvements plan to 
address pavement markings/painting and installation of new on-site directional signage to direct 
traffic flow to appropriate businesses. The on-site circulation improvements plan will be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Division and City Engineer.  
 
At their regular July 11, 2022 meeting, the Planning and Preservation Commission asked for 
clarification of who would coordinate the on-site circulation improvement efforts with the 
individual parcel owners of the shopping center and when the improvements need to be 
completed. Condition No. 8 has been revised to identify the property owner/property 
management company as the responsible party for completing the on-site circulation 
improvements.  The property owner/property management company will need to coordinate 
with the individual parcel owners of the shopping center to complete the work.  Condition No. 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 168 of 212



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 For a 
Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five Parcels For Individual Ownership in the 
Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062  
Page 5 of 6 
 
 
10 requires the property owner/property management company to complete the on-site 
improvements prior to recording the Final Tract Map.  
 
Property Maintenance and Access. 
With the proposed division of land and the possibility of five separate property owners, staff has 
added a condition for the applicant to provide the following for review and approval by the City 
Engineer:  
 

a. A Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) and/or a Property Association 
document showing maintenance and operation of all common areas and facilities, 
including all on-site signage.  
 

b. A reciprocal access and parking easements incorporated into the Final Tract Map.  
 

These conditions are included to ensure that the eastern portion of the shopping center will 
continue to have shared access and parking and be maintained in good condition.  
 
Discussion for findings for approval of the proposed Tentative Tract Map are found in the 
resolution, included as Attachment “A”.  
 
Environmental Review. 
The project qualifies for exemption to conduct further environmental review under California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) based on CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) common sense 
exemption.  The project involves the division of a single parcel into five separate parcels without 
any changes to the physical environment of the land, which can be said with certainty that it will 
not have a significant effect on the environment.  
 
Legal Notification. 
On July 22, 2022, a public hearing notice was published in the print and online versions of the 
legal advertisement section of the San Fernando Valley Sun Newspaper (Attachment “E”). In 
addition, on July 22, 2022, a public hearing notice was posted at the Project Site, at the two City 
Hall bulletin boards, and at the local branch of the Los Angeles County Library at 217 N. Maclay 
Avenue. Notices of the public hearing for this TTM request were also mailed to all property 
owners of record within a 500-foot radius of the Project Site. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
No additional budget impacts are anticipated as a result of this approval.  Sufficient revenue will 
be generated as budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget under Planning Review 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 169 of 212



A Public Hearing to Consider Adopting a Resolution Approving Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 For a 
Proposed Subdivision of a 9.29-acre Parcel Divided Into Five Parcels For Individual Ownership in the 
Home Depot/Target Shopping Center at 12920 Foothill Boulevard, Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062  
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
and Construction Permit Fees as paid by the applicant to cover all associated expenses for this 
project.   
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve TTM No. 2022-001, subject to Conditions of 
Approval included as Exhibit “A”.   
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution No. 8172, including:  

Exhibit A: Conditions of Approval 
B. Approved Parcel 1 and 4 Façade and Site Improvements Plans 
C. Approved Target Façade and Site Improvements Plans 
D. Proposed Tentative Tract Map  
E. Public Notice and Vicinity Map 

 
 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 170 of 212



  ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8172 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 2022-001 FOR THE 
SUBDIVISION OF A 9.29-ACRE PARCEL INTO FIVE PARCELS FOR 
INDIVIDUAL OWNERSHIP IN THE HOME DEPOT/TARGET SHOPPING 
CENTER LOCATED AT 12920 FOOTHILL BOULEVARD (ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 
NUMBER: 2514-001-062) 

 
WHEREAS, an application, Tentative Tract Map No. 2002-001, has been filed by Kacie Won 

of Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. representing the property owner (“Applicant”), to request 
approval to subdivide a 9.29-acre site into five parcels for individual ownership and/or sale in 
The Home Depot shopping center located at 12920 Foothill Blvd. (Assessor’s Parcel Number 
2514-001-062); and  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed subdivision have been reviewed in accordance with the City’s 

Subdivision Ordinance (Chapter 78) of the San Fernando Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the project site is within the Precise Development Overlay (PD) Zone with a 

based zoning of Commercial (C-2), and the proposed project has been reviewed for compliance 
with the applicable development standards within both zones; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed project will not change the exiting commercial uses and is 

consistent with the commercial land use designation of the General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project is considered a “project” as defined by the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the project has been reviewed for compliance with the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and it qualifies for an exemption for further environmental 
review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) common sense exemption; and  
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, on July 1, 2022, the City of San Fernando 
Community Development Department published a legal notice concerning the proposed project 
in the San Fernando Sun, a local newspaper of general circulation, regarding the City of San 
Fernando Planning and Preservation Commission meeting of July 11, 2022, and mailed the notice 
to property owners located within a 500-foot radius of the project site; and  

 
 WHEREAS, on July 11, 2022, the Planning and Preservation Commission conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing, at which time public testimony was taken concerning the proposed 
Tentative Tract Map, and the Commission voted 4-0-1 (Commissioner Pacheco was absent) 
recommending City Council approve the project; and 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 171 of 212



  RES NO. 8172 
 

2 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, on July 22, 2022, the City of San Fernando 
Community Development Department published a legal notice concerning the proposed project 
in the San Fernando Valley Sun, a local newspaper of general circulation, regarding the City of 
San Fernando City Council meeting of July 22, 2022, and mailed the notice to property owners 
located within a 500-foot radius of the project site; and  

 
 WHEREAS, on August 1, 2022, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing, 
at which time public testimony was taken concerning the proposed Tentative Tract Map in 
conformance with the City’s Subdivision Ordinance (Chapter 78) of the San Fernando Municipal 
Code, General Plan, and development standards within the Precise Development Overlay (PD) 
Zone and Commercial (C-2) Zone, and the Subdivision Map Act. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FINDINGS  
 

This project has been reviewed by the City for compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project involves the division of a single parcel into five (5) 
separate parcels without any changes to the physical environment of the land and could be said 
with certainty that it will not have a significant effect on the environment. As such, the proposed 
project is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) “Common 
sense” exemption. 

 
SECTION 2. FINDINGS FOR TENTATIVE TRACT MAP  
 
Pursuant to San Fernando Subdivision Ordinance (Chapter 78) and Subdivision Map Act 

Section (Government Code Section 66474), the following findings shall be made for approval of 
a Tentative Tract Map: 
 
Finding 1: The proposed tentative tract map is consistent with the City’s applicable General and 
Specific Plans.  
 
Evidence: The General Plan Land Use designation of the project site is Commercial (COM), 
consistent with the existing commercial uses on the project site.  The proposed subdivision does 
not change the existing commercial use of the project site, except for providing an opportunity 
for individual ownership of the land that the existing businesses are located on, and therefore, is 
consistent with the General Plan. 
 
Finding 2: The design or improvement of proposed tentative tract map is consistent with the 
applicable General and Specific Plans.  
 
Evidence: The proposed Tentative Parcel Map has been designed to meet all City standards 
applicable to retail subdivisions. The zoning for the project site is Precise Development Overlay 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 172 of 212



  RES NO. 8172 
 

3 

(PD). According to the development standards listed in the San Fernando Zoning Code Section 
106-643, the provisions of the zone to which the PD zone is added shall apply. For this property, 
the underlying zone for this site is Commercial (C-2) with minimum lot sizes at 5,000 square-feet 
(0.11 acres) and no lot dimensions requirements. The proposed parcels satisfy the zoning 
requirements, and therefore, is in compliance with the City’s Zoning Code.  
 
Finding 3: The site is physically suitable for the type of development. 
 
Evidence: Site topography is generally flat without significant slopes. The site currently developed 
as a shopping center.  The proposed subdivision does not include additional development, except 
minor site improvements to enhance the appearance of the center and on-site circulation to help 
direct patrons navigate the shopping center.  Given this, the site is physically suitable for the type 
and proposed development. 
 
Finding 4: The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development. 
 
Evidence: The project site is an existing commercial center and the proposed project does not 
involve an increase of density, and therefore, is physically suitable for the density of 
development.  
 
Finding 5: The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements will not cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 
 
Evidence: This project has been reviewed by the City for compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project involves the division of a single parcel into five (5) 
separate parcels without any changes to the physical environment of the land and could be said 
with certainty that it will not have a significant effect on the environment. As such, the proposed 
project is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) “Common 
sense” exemption. The design of the subdivision will not cause substantial environmental 
damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 
 
Finding 6: The design of the subdivision or type of improvements will not cause serious public 
health problems. 
 
Evidence: The design of the subdivision is in conformance with the City’s General Plan, Zoning 
Code, and the Subdivision Map Act. The proposed subdivision does not change the existing 
commercial use of the project site and has been conditioned to improve on-site circulation and 
maintain the common/shared areas in good condition. The City’s ordinances, codes, and 
standards have been created based on currently accepted standards and practices for the 
preservation of the public health, safety, and welfare. 
 
Finding 7: That the design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will conflict with 
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the 
proposed subdivision. In this connection, the governing body may approve a map if it finds that 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 173 of 212



  RES NO. 8172 
 

4 

alternate easements, for access or for use, will be provided, and that these will be substantially 
equivalent to ones previously acquired by the public. This subsection shall apply only to 
easements of record or to easements established by judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction and no authority is hereby granted to a legislative body to determine that the public 
at large has acquired easements for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. 
 
Evidence: The design of Tentative Parcel Map No. 2022-001 would not conflict with any existing 
public easements for access through or use of the property because the proposed tract map 
maintains the existing easements and a condition is included to require a reciprocal parking and 
access easement for the retail center to ensure appropriate access is provided and maintained. 

 
SECTION 3:   RECORD OF PROCEEDING 
 
The documents and other materials that constitute the record of the proceedings upon 

which the City Council’s decision is based, which include, but are not limited to, the 
environmental documents, staff reports, as well as all materials that support the staff reports for 
the proposed project and are located in the Community Development Department of the City of 
San Fernando at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340.  The custodian of these documents 
is the City Clerk of the City of San Fernando.  
 

SECTION 4:   DETERMINATION  
 
The Project is consistent with the objectives, policies, and general land uses and programs 

provided in the City’s General Plan, the applicable development standards for Precise 
Development Overlay (PD) Zone and Commercial (C-2) Zone, and the Subdivision Map Act. 
Therefore, the City Council approves Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001, subject to conditions of 
approval attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  

 
SECTION 5. CERTIFICATION OF THE RESOLUTION 
 

The City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, shall certify to the adoption of this 
resolution. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 1st day of August 2022. 
 
 
                         

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 174 of 212



  RES NO. 8172 
 

5 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8172, which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
1st day of August, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of August, 2022.  
 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

    
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 175 of 212



EXHIBIT “A”  
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

PROJECT NO.: Tentative Tract Map 2022-001 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 12920 Foothill Boulevard, San Fernando, CA  91340 
(Assessor’s Parcel No. 2514-001-062) 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The subdivision of 9.29 acre parcel within The Home 
Depot Shopping Center into five (5) parcels to allow 
individual ownership of each new parcel.   

The following conditions shall be made a part of the approval of the project, and shall be 
complied with in their entirety, as determined by the Community Development Department: 

1. Tentative Tract Map Entitlement.  The Tentative Tract Map is granted for the land
described in this application and any attachments thereto, as reviewed by the City
Council on August 1, 2022, except as herein modified to comply with these Conditions
of Approval.

2. Within thirty (30) days of approval of Tentative Tract Map 2022-001, the applicant shall
certify his or her acceptance of the conditions of approval or modifications thereto by
signing below that he or she accepts and shall be bound by all of the conditions.

Applicant’s Signature  Date 

Print Name Date 

3. Indemnification.  The property owner and the project applicant, shall indemnify,
protect, hold harmless and defend the City and any agency or instrumentality thereof,
and/or any of its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, actions, or
proceedings against the City to attack, set aside, void, annul, seek monetary damages
resulting from an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof,
advisory agency, appeal board or legislative body including actions approved by the
voter of the City, concerning the entitlement application.  City shall promptly notify both
the property owner and developer of any claim, action, or proceeding to which this
condition is applicable and shall further cooperate fully in the defense of the action.  The
City reserves its right to take any and all action the City deems to be in the best interest
of the City and its citizens in regard to such defense.  The property owner and developer

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 8172 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 176 of 212



shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City for all costs and fees incurred in 
additional investigation or study of, or for supplementing, redrafting, revising, or 
amending, any document (such as an environmental impact report or related 
environmental assessment) if made necessary through the initiation of the project.  

4. These conditions of approval and the attachments thereto are applicable to the land
described in this application and shown on the Tentative Tract Map.

5. The proposed Final Tract Map shall be in compliance with all of the provisions of
Chapter 78 (Subdivisions) of the San Fernando Municipal Code and the State of
California Subdivision Map Act (Government Code §66410 et seq.).  The Tentative Tract
Map shall be valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of approval, unless an
extension is approved by the Community Development Director.  The applicant shall
also comply with all other requirements of any applicable federal, state, or local law,
ordinance, or regulation.

6. The Final Tract Map shall be prepared in accordance with the policies and procedures of
the City of San Fernando.  Such map shall be submitted to the Public Works Department
and shall be approved for recording by the City Engineer and be recorded with the
County Recorder prior to expiration of the Tentative Tract Map.

Prior to Approval of Final Tract Map 

7. The Final Tract Map shall comply with the requirements for subdivision of the site as
listed in the attached “Public Works Department Development/Improvement Review
Checklist.” (See Attachment “1”).  Any approved revisions to the proposed Subdivision
shall be incorporated into the map prior to approval of the Final Parcel Map.

8. The property owner/property management company shall submit an on-site circulation
improvements plan showing pavement painting and installation of on-site directional
signage to direct traffic flow to appropriate businesses. The on-site improvements plan
shall be reviewed and approved by Planning and the City Engineer.

9. The property owner/applicant/property management company shall submit to the City
Engineer for review and approval:

a. A Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) and/or a Property Association
document to maintain and operation of all common areas and or facilities,
including all on-site signage.

b. A reciprocal access and parking easements incorporated into the Final Tract
Map.

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 8172 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 177 of 212



Prior to Recordation of the Final Tract Map 

10. The on-site circulation improvements plan shall be completed by the property
owner/property management company.

Attachment 1: Public Works Checklist 

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 8172 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 178 of 212



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 8172 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 179 of 212



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 8172 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 180 of 212



NO
PARKING

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

FIRE

ELECT. 

P

P

P

P

P

PP

PP P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P P P P P P P P P P P P

P

PP P

P P P

P

P

P

P

P

P

PP
P
P

P P

P

P

P

P

P

36
38

52

18

6610105

9
6 7

5

6

8

12

38
36

38
29

27

6

20

8

3
8

9

9

4

16

7

11

5

36
34

36181734
34

32
34

8

8
32 32

17

10

52

102

9

14

1

13

15

EXISTING
#12960

HOME DEPOT
114, 423 S.F.
NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12920

VACANT MAJOR
106,911 S.F.
NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12950

PAD
5,400 S.F.

NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12930

PAD
2,250 S.F.

NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12915

PAD
2,400 S.F.

NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12910

PAD
2,400 S.F.

NOT A PARTA1.1
1

EXISTING
GARDEN CENTER

NOT A PART

EXISTING
#12940

D C B A
1,575
S.F.

1,195
S.F.

1,955
S.F.

1,575
S.F.

EXISTING
#12980-110

2,500 S.F.

#12980-120
1,450 S.F.

#12980-130
1,450 S.F.

A1.2
1

±22,011 SF.
PARCEL 1

±370,277 SF.
PARCEL 2

±43,374 SF.
PARCEL 3

±414,765 SF.
PARCEL 4

APN: 2514-001-060

APN: 2514-001-059
APN: 2514-001-061

APN: 2514-001-062

(Project Number)

(Sheet Number)

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

75-21734-02

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

- F
AC

AD
E 

R
EN

O
VA

TI
O

N
G

C
 S

AN
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, L

LC

DL
R 

Gr
ou

p
c

12
98

0 
FO

O
TH

IL
L 

BL
VD

.
SA

N
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, C

A 
91

34
2

KEY PLAN

SD0.1

EXISTING / DEMO
SITE PLAN

SCALE :            =EXISTING / DEMO SITE PLAN 1" 1 40'-0"

1. EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE FROM SITE PLAN BASED ON FILE
RECEIVED BY OWNER.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT SITE AND VERIFY WITH
THE ARCHITECT ITEMS DESIGNATED FOR REMOVAL AND
ITEMS TO REMAIN.

3. DO NOT SCALE THESE DRAWINGS.  SHOULD ANY
DIMENSIONAL DISCREPANCIES BE ENCOUNTERED.
CLARIFICATIONS BE OBTAINED FROM THE ARCHITECT.

4. PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY EXCAVATION WORK THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ALL THE UTILITY COMPANIES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES
PROMOTED BY THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANY.

5. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO ENSURE THAT ALL LOCAL
AUTHORITIES ARE NOTIFIED AS REQUIRED PRIOR TO
COMMENCING OF WORK AND SHALL SECURE ALL PERMITS
THAT MAY BE REQUIRED FROM ALL JURISDICTIONS
AFFECTED BY THIS WORK.

6. THE LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN
ON THE THIS PLAN ARE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE PROPER LOCAL
AUTHORITIES OR RESPECTIVE UTILITY COMPANY TO
CONFIRM THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES
BEFORE COMMENCING  WORK. ANY DAMAGE DUE TO
FAILURE OF THE CONTRACTOR TO CONTACT THE PROPER
AUTHORITIES SHALL BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR.

7. ALL REFUSE, DEBRIS AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO BE
REMOVED, THAT ARE NOT TO BE STOCKPILED FOR LATER
USE ON THE PROJECT OR DELIVERED TO THE OWNER
SHALL BE LEGALLY DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE BY THE
CONTRACTOR. SALVAGING OF MATERIALS MUST BE
APPROVED BY OWNER.

8. ALL ITEMS REQUIRING REMOVAL SHALL BE REMOVED TO
THE FULL DEPTH TO INCLUDE BASE MATERIAL AND
FOOTINGS OR FOUNDATIONS AS APPLICABLE, AND REUSED
AS DIRECTED BY THE OWNER OR LEGALLY DISPOSED OF
OFF-SITE BY CONTRACTOR.

9. AT ALL LOCATIONS WHERE CONCRETE PAVEMENT OR
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE ROADWAY ABUT NEW
CONSTRUCTION THE EDGE OF THE EXISTING CURB OR
PAVEMENT SHALL BE SAWCUT TO A STRAIGHT CLEAN
SMOOTH EDGE.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING
EXISTING CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THOSE SHOWN IN
THESE DOCUMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE
ARCHITECT / ENGINEER SHOULD ANY DISCREPANCIES OR
PREVIOUSLY UNKNOWN CONDITIONS BE DISCOVERED.
VERIFICATION SHALL BE DONE PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

11. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE TO
EXISTING CONDITIONS THAT ARE DUE TO CONTRACTOR
OPERATIONS AND WHICH ARE OUTSIDE THE LIMIT OF
WORK.

12. ALL POINTS OF CONSTRUCTIONS INGRESS AND EGRESS
SHALL BE PROTECTED TO PREVENT TRACKING OF MUD
ONTO PUBLIC WAYS.  ANY MUD ON PUBLIC WAYS
ORIGINATING FROM THE JOB SITE SHALL BE CLEANED BY
THE CONTRACTOR.  PROVIDE DUST CONTROL AS
APPROVED BY THE ARCHITECT.

13. REMOVE ALL EXISTING CONSTRUCTION NECESSARY FOR
THE COMPLETION OF THE WORK AS DEPICTED ON THE
DRAWINGS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ITEMS SHOWN
ON THE PLANS WITH DASHED LINES. DISCONNECT AND
SEAL ELECTRICAL AND UTILITY SERVICE LINES
INTERFERING WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION. POST WARNING
SIGNS ON ALL SERVICES WHICH MUST REMAIN ENERGIZED
DURING THE PERIOD OF EXCAVATION AND DEMOLITION.

14. DISCONNECT AND CAP MECHANICAL SERVICES IN
ACCORDANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF LOCAL AUTHORITY
HAVING JURISDICTION. NATURAL GAS SUPPLY LINES SHALL
BE REMOVED BY THE PROPER AUTHORITY HAVING
JURISDICTION OR BY A LICENSED TRADESMAN IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PROPER AUTHORITY'S INSTRUCTIONS.
REMOVE SEWER AND WATER LINES TO PROPERTY LINE
AND CAP TO PREVENT LEAKAGE.

15. PROTECT EXISTING STRUCTURE TO REMAIN. SPECIFIED OR
UNSPECIFIED WORK THAT MAY DAMAGE EXISTING
STRUCTURE THAT WILL REMAIN SHOULD BE REVIEWED
WITH THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE
WORK.  PATCH AND REPAIR ANY DAMAGES CAUSED BY THE
CONSTRUCTION WORK.

16. G.C TO REFER TO OTHER RELEVANT CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS FOR COMPLETE SCOPE OF DEMOLITION.

17. G.C. TO REMOVE ALL EXISTING EQUIPMENT RELATED TO
THE CURRENT USE.  CARRY OUT A SITE / LAND
ASSESSMENT FOR CONTAMINANTS AND PROVIDE
REMEDIATION.

SITE PREPARATION
AND DEMOLITION NOTES:

LEGEND- DEMO / EXISTING:

EXTENT AREA LIMITS OF WORK

EXISTING TO BE REMOVED / DEMOLISHED

EXISTING TO REMAIN

KEYNOTES:

(E) EASEMENTS

(E) FIRE HYDRANT TO REMAIN

(E) CENTER LINE OF STREET

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

(E) PROPERTY LINE

(E) PERIMETER CMU FENCE TO REMAIN

(E) BUILDING TO REMAIN, NOT A PART

REMOVE (E) PLANTS, TREES, LANDSCAPE AND
HARDSCAPE, INCLUDING ROOTS AND IRRIGATION
WHERE OCCURS.

DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR NEW PATIO AREA

DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR (N) STAMPED CONCRETE PATIO AREA,
MAINTAIN ADJACENT SLOPE, ALIGN

10 (E) SEWER MANHOLES, PROTECT IN PLACE

11 (E) UTILITY SS SCO, PROTECT IN PLACE

3

0

1:40

20 40 80N

3 3 3

3

6

17

2

8
8 8

88

8

3

3

5

7

9

PROJECT NOTES:
1. THE PORTION OF THIS SITE PLAN OUTSIDE OF THE SCOPE

OF WORK LINE IS EXISTING TO REMAIN AS SHOWN FOR
REFERENCE ONLY. SEE ENLARGED SITE PLAN FOR
SPECIFIC INFORMATION AND NEW SCOPE OF WORK.

2. THIS SITE PLAN IS BASED ON A FILE RECEIVED BY CLIENT
AND CIVIL ENGINEER DCA.

3. ALL CURB CUTS AND TRAFFIC SIGNALS SHOWN, EXISTING
MUST BE VERIFIED.

10

11

05/20/2021

ATTACHMENT "B"August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 181 of 212



N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

FIRE

ELECT. 

3
A4.1

1
A4.1

2
A4.1

4
A4.1

2

1

2

6

6

6

6

11 9

55

5

4'-0"

4'-0"45'-0"

10
'-1

"

EXISTING
#12980-110

2,500 S.F.

EXISTING
#12980-120

1,450 S.F.

EXISTING
#12980-130

1,450 S.F.

4'-
0"

9'-
1"

9'-
7"

14

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

FIRE

ELECT. 

7
A4.1

5
A4.1

6
A4.1

8
A4.1

3
-

EXISTING
#12980-110

2,500 S.F.

EXISTING
#12980-120

1,450 S.F.

EXISTING
#12980-130

1,450 S.F.
SLOPE 1/4"

4'-0"

4'-0"45'-0"4'
-0

"
10

'-1
"

1'-4" 3'-0"

8

4

5

1

5

12

7

4

8

4

8

5'-0" 5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 5'-0"

5'
-0

"

5'-0" 5'-0" 5'-0" 5'-0"

3'
-7

"

7'
-7

"

3'-2"

5C
SD2.0

9'
-1

"
9'

-7
"

15

5

4'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

SLOPE 1/4"

5'
-0

"
3'

-7
"

12

(Project Number)

(Sheet Number)

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

75-21734-02

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

- F
AC

AD
E 

R
EN

O
VA

TI
O

N
G

C
 S

AN
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, L

LC

DL
R 

Gr
ou

p
c

12
98

0 
FO

O
TH

IL
L 

BL
VD

.
SA

N
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, C

A 
91

34
2

KEY PLAN

A1.1

ENLARGED
FLOOR PLANS -
PARCEL 1

A1.1
EXISTING / DEMO- FLOOR PLAN PARCEL 1
1/8" = 1'-0"

1
A1.1

PROPOSED- FLOOR PLAN PARCEL 1
1/8" = 1'-0"

2

A1.1
ENLARGED PATIO PLAN
1/4" = 1'-0"

3

PLAN KEY NOTES
1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

7

(N) STAMPED CONCRETE FLOOR AT (N) PATIO AREA
TO MAINTAIN ADJACENT SLOPE, ALIGN- 3A / SD2.0

(E) PARKING TO REMAIN

(E) BUILDING TO REMAIN

PREP (E) EXT. WALLS & COLUMNS TO RECEIVE (N)
PAINT FINISH. PATCH / REPAIR AS NEEDED. SEE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

(N) PLANTER BOXES, TOURNESOL- BOULEVARD,
RECTANGULAR, IPE WOOD, BV-601836 FRP/WOOD
60"X18"X36" OR EQUAL - 2A / SD2.0

(E) SIDEWALK TO REMAIN

(E) PLANTER & TREES TO REMAIN

(N) 42" HIGH ALUM. RAILING, 3E / SD2.0

DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR (N) STAMPED CONCRETE PATIO AREA

10 DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR (N) STAMPED CONCRETE PATIO AREA,
MAINTAIN ADJACENT SLOPE, ALIGN

11 REMOVE (E) PLANTS, TREES, LANDSCAPE AND
HARDSCAPE, INCLUDING ROOTS AND IRRIGATION
WHERE OCCURS FOR (N) PATIO AREA.

12 (N) STAMPED CONCRETE FLOOR AT (N) PATIO AREA -
3A / SD2.0

13 (E) SEWER MANHOLE, PROTECT IN PLACE

14 DEMO HATCHED PORTION INDICATES PART OF (E)
CONCRETE TO RECEIVE 1/4" SLOPE.

15 HATCHED PORTION INDICATES CONCRETE TO HAVE
A 1/4" SLOPE.

PLAN GENERAL NOTES:

A. EXISTING WALLS & COLUMNS TO BE CLEANED / PREPPED, PATCH
/ REPAIR AND SEAL TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT AS INDICATED ON
PLANS.

B. EXISTING PLASTER FINISH AT SOFFITS TO BE CLEANED /
PREPPED, PATCH / REPAIR AND SEAL TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT
FINISH AS INDICATED ON PLANS.

C. SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

12980-110 - 2,500 sq.ft
12980-120 - 1,450 sq.ft
12980-130 - 1,450 sq.ft
PARKING - 22 STALLS
PROPOSED PATIO - ±502 sq.ft

05/20/2021

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 182 of 212



NO
PARKING

2
A4.2

1
A4.2

2

1

5

5

5106

30'-61
2"

5'
-0

"

777

±1
7'

-6
1 2"

23
'-0

1 2"
(E

) V
.I.

F.

EXISTING
#12940 - A
1,575 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - B
1,195 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - C
1,955 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - D
1,575 S.F.

13

NO
PARKING

4
A4.2

3
A4.2

3
-

30'-61
2"

5'
-0

"
±1

7'
-6

1 2"

23
'-0

1 2"
(E

) V
.I.

F.

EXISTING
#12940 - A
1,575 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - B
1,195 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - C
1,955 S.F.

EXISTING
#12940 - D
1,575 S.F.

5F
SD2.0

4F
SD2.0

4F
SD2.0

30'-61
2"

4

5

3

7

5

6

5'
-0

"
±1

7'
-6

1 2"

23
'-0

1 2"
(E

) V
.I.

F.

13

5F
SD2.0

4F
SD2.0

4F
SD2.0

(Project Number)

(Sheet Number)

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

75-21734-02

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

- F
AC

AD
E 

R
EN

O
VA

TI
O

N
G

C
 S

AN
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, L

LC

DL
R 

Gr
ou

p
c

12
98

0 
FO

O
TH

IL
L 

BL
VD

.
SA

N
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, C

A 
91

34
2

KEY PLAN

A1.2

ENLARGED
FLOOR PLANS -
PARCEL 4

A1.2
EXISTING / DEMO - FLOOR PLAN PARCEL 4
1/8" = 1'-0"

1
A1.2

PROPOSED- FLOOR PLAN PARCEL 4
1/8" = 1'-0"

2

PLAN KEY NOTES
1

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

7

(N) STAMPED CONCRETE FLOOR AT (N) PATIO AREA
TO MAINTAIN ADJACENT SLOPE, ALIGN- 3A / SD2.0

(E) PARKING TO REMAIN

(E) BUILDING TO REMAIN

PREP (E) EXT. WALLS & COLUMNS TO RECEIVE (N)
PAINT FINISH. PATCH / REPAIR AS NEEDED. SEE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

(N) PLANTER BOXES, TOURNESOL- BOULEVARD,
RECTANGULAR, IPE WOOD, BV-601836 FRP/WOOD
60"X18"X36" OR EQUAL - 2A / SD2.0

(E) SIDEWALK TO REMAIN

(E) PLANTER & TREES TO REMAIN

(N) 42" HIGH ALUM. RAILING, 3E / SD2.0

DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR (N) STAMPED CONCRETE PATIO AREA

10 DEMOLISH PORTION OF EXISTING CONCRETE
PAVEMENT FOR (N) STAMPED CONCRETE PATIO AREA,
MAINTAIN ADJACENT SLOPE, ALIGN

11 REMOVE (E) PLANTS, TREES, LANDSCAPE AND
HARDSCAPE, INCLUDING ROOTS AND IRRIGATION
WHERE OCCURS FOR (N) PATIO AREA.

12 (N) STAMPED CONCRETE FLOOR AT (N) PATIO AREA -
3A / SD2.0

13 (E) SEWER MANHOLE, PROTECT IN PLACE

14 DEMO HATCHED PORTION INDICATES PART OF (E)
CONCRETE TO RECEIVE 1/4" SLOPE.

15 HATCHED PORTION INDICATES CONCRETE TO HAVE
A 1/4" SLOPE.

PLAN GENERAL NOTES:

A. EXISTING WALLS & COLUMNS TO BE CLEANED / PREPPED, PATCH
/ REPAIR AND SEAL TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT AS INDICATED ON
PLANS.

B. EXISTING PLASTER FINISH AT SOFFITS TO BE CLEANED /
PREPPED, PATCH / REPAIR AND SEAL TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT
FINISH AS INDICATED ON PLANS.

C. SEE EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

A1.2
ENLARED PATIO AREA
1/4" = 1'-0"

3

12940-A - 1,575 sq.ft
12940-B - 1,195 sq.ft
12940-C - 1,955 sq.ft
12940-D - 1,575 sq.ft
PARKING - 25 STALLS
PROPOSED PATIO - ±536 sq.ft

05/20/2021

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 183 of 212



PL-1 RT-1 RT-1 RT-1 PL-1

PL-1

PL-1

GL-1GL-1 GL-1 GL-1

FLOOR FINISH

EL = 0'-0"

B.O. PARAPET (V.I.F.)

EL = +14'-11"

B.O. SOFFIT (V.I.F.)

EL = +10'-2"

3'-
2"

3'-
2"

EL3EL3EL3EL3EL3EL3

PL-1 RT-1

PL-1

PL-1

FLOOR FINISH

EL = 0'-0"

B.O. SOFFIT (V.I.F.)

EL = +12'-0"

B.O. ROOF (V.I.F.)

EL = +14'-11"

EL3

ST-1

PT-1 RT-1

PT-1

PT-1

BX-1BX-1BX-1

FLOOR FINISH

EL = 0'-0"

B.O. SOFFIT (V.I.F.)

EL = +12'-0"

B.O. ROOF (V.I.F.)

EL = +14'-11"

1E
SD2.0

PT-1 PT-1 PT-1

PT-2

RT-1 RT-1 RT-1

ST-1BX-1BX-1BX-1BX-1 ST-1 ST-1 ST-1ST-1

ST-1

PT-1 PT-1

PT-1 PT-2PT-1

FLOOR FINISH

EL = 0'-0"

B.O. PARAPET (V.I.F.)

EL = +14'-11"

B.O. SOFFIT (V.I.F.)

EL = +10'-2"

1E
SD2.0

3'-
2"

3'-
2" 1E

SD2.0
(Project Number)

(Sheet Number)

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

75-21734-02

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

- F
AC

AD
E 

R
EN

O
VA

TI
O

N
G

C
 S

AN
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, L

LC

DL
R 

Gr
ou

p
c

12
98

0 
FO

O
TH

IL
L 

BL
VD

.
SA

N
 F

ER
N

AN
D

O
, C

A 
91

34
2

KEY PLAN

A4.2

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS -
PARCEL 4

A4.2
EXISTING- EXTERIOR ELEVATION PARCEL 4- EAST
1/8" = 1'-0"

1

A4.2
EXISTING- EXTERIOR ELEVATION PARCEL 4- NORTH
1/8" = 1'-0"

2

A4.2
PROPOSED- EXTERIOR ELEVATION PARCEL 4- EAST
1/8" = 1'-0"

3

A4.2
PROPOSED- EXTERIOR ELEVATION PARCEL 4- NORTH
1/8" = 1'-0"

4

NOTES APPLY TO ALL EXTERIOR ELEVATION SHEETS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL:

A. GENERAL NOTES APPLY TO ALL SHEETS.
B. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT DRAWINGS OF ALL PAINT COLORS

AND FINISHES TO OWNER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO PAINTING.
C. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND FINISH LOCATIONS WITH OWNER

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
D. ALL FINISH MATERIALS ARE FURNISHED BY CONTRACTOR UNLESS

NOTED OTHERWISE ON DRAWINGS.
E. CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN A COPY OF CURRENT MANUFACTURER

INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS ON ALL RECOMMENDATIONS.
F. ALL FINISHED TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL CODES AND

FIRE RATINGS.
G. EXISTING STOREFRONTS & WINDOWS TO BE PROTECTED IN

PLACE.
H. PAINT TO BE SHERWIN WILLIAMS (U.O.N.), 1 COAT PRIMER, 2

COATS PAINT, PAINTING FINISH FLAT, U.O.N.
I. EXTERIOR BRICK/CMU WALLS, PLASTER / EIFS WALLS, CLAY TILE

ROOFS, TRIM & COPING TO BE PREPPED FOR PAINT, POWER
WASH, PATCH / REPAIR & SEAL AS NEEDED / REQUIRED FOR NEW
PAINT. LOCATION AS SPECIFIED ON EXTERIOR ELEVATION.

EXT. ELEVATION GENERAL NOTES

REFERENCE KEYNOTES

EXISTING ROOF TILE TO REMAIN

NEW PAINT, CHOCOLATE (SW 6013)

EXISTING PLASTER FINISH TO REMAIN, PREP
FOR NEW PAINT

EXISTING ALUM. STOREFRONT SYSTEM TO REMAIN

NEW PAINT, DRIFT OF MIST (SW 9166)

PL-1

PT-1

RT-1

GL-1

PT-2

NEW PORCELAIN TILE AT (E) PILASTER
BASE, EMSER TILE, ALPINE SERIES,
ESPRESSO OR EQUAL

ST-1

NEW PLANTER BOXES, TOURNESOL-
BOULEVARD, RECTANGULAR, IPE WOOD,
BV-601836 FRP/Wood 60” x 18” x 36” OR
EQUAL, 2A / SD2.0

BX-1

NEW 42" HIGH ALUM. RAIL, 3E / SD2.0RL-1

ELEV. CONSTRUCTION KEY NOTES

EL1

EL2

EL3

(N) PAINT AT ALL EXISTING PILASTER BASE, TYP.
(SW9166)
(N) STAMPED CONCRETE FLOOR AT (N) PATIO AREA

REMOVE AND REPLACE IN PLACE BASE PILASTER AT
(E) COLUMNS, REPLACE WITH (N) TILE, MAINTAIN (E)
BASE DEPTH AROUND COLUMNS, TYP.

05/20/2021

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 184 of 212



05/20/2021

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 185 of 212



drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING

drive up drive upNO
PARKINGdrive up drive upNO

PARKINGdrive up drive upNO
PARKINGdrive up drive upNO

PARKINGdrive up drive upNO
PARKING

drive up

drive up

drive up
NO

PARKING

drive up NO
PARKING

drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING drive updrive up
NO

PARKING

drive up drive upNO
PARKINGdrive up drive upNO

PARKINGdrive up drive upNO
PARKINGdrive up drive upNO

PARKINGdrive up drive upNO
PARKING

drive up

drive up

drive up
NO

PARKING

drive up NO
PARKING

44
' T

YP
.

6'
TYP.

9'
TYP.

19
' T

YP
.

19
' T

YP
.

72'
TYP.

9.7'

2

4

11

16 16

17

16 16 17 18 18 18
16 16

18 18 18 18
19 19 13 13

12 12

19 19 19 19

18 18 18

7

9 7

11

5

7

8

3

5 5 5 55

4 66

7

6

5

14

5

2

20

2

4

4

4

7

5

1

5

2

2
6

5 5

1

1

2

3

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G
drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G
drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G
dr

iv
e 

up
dr

iv
e 

up
N

O
PA

R
KI

N
G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G
dr

iv
e 

up
dr

iv
e 

up
N

O
PA

R
KI

N
G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G

Z

Z

drive up

drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

15 15

8

9

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G
drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G
drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
drive up

N
O

PAR
KIN

G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G
dr

iv
e 

up
dr

iv
e 

up
N

O
PA

R
KI

N
G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G
dr

iv
e 

up
dr

iv
e 

up
N

O
PA

R
KI

N
G

dr
iv

e 
up

dr
iv

e 
up

N
O

PA
R

KI
N

G

Z

Z

drive up

drive up

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

drive up
N

O
PAR

KIN
G

15 15

8

9

FOOTHILL BOULEVARD

R
O

D
S 

W
AY

TARGET
SAN FERNANDO

12920 FOOTHILL BLVD
SAN FERNANDO, CA 91342

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

2
3 4

5 6
7 8

9 10

11 12

15 16

17 18
19 20

21 22

13 14

23 24

EX. FIRE HYDRANT
TO REMAIN

EX. LIGHT
POLE (TYP.)

CENTERLINE

WATER, SEWER,
STORM DRAIN AND
PUBLIC UTILITY AND
RIGHTS EASEMENT

WATERLINE
EASEMENT

50
'

12'
UTILITIES EASEMENT

20
'

W
AT

ER
,S

EW
ER

,S
TO

R
M

D
R

AI
N

 A
N

D
 P

U
BL

IC
 U

TI
LI

TY
AN

D
 R

IG
H

TS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

12
'

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
EA

SE
M

EN
T

20'
WATER, SEWER, STORM

DRAIN AND PUBLIC UTILITY
AND RIGHTS EASEMENT

20
'

W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 S
EW

ER
PI

PE
S,

 IN
G

R
ES

S 
AN

D
EG

R
ES

S 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

5'

14
'

20
'

W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 S
EW

ER
PI

PE
LI

N
ES

, I
N

G
R

ES
S

AN
D

 E
G

R
ES

S 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

30
'

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

EA
SE

M
EN

T

10
'

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

10'
PUBLIC UTILITIES

EASEMENT

12'
UTILITY EASEMENT

20'
WATER AND SEWER
PIPELINES, INGRESS

AND EGRESS EASEMENT

30'
BUILDING SETBACK

EASEMENT

20'
PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT

10'
WATERLINE
EASEMENT

31'

20
'

11
.0

'

18.0' 18.0' 18.0' 18.0'

PROP. CART
STORAGE

PROP. CART
STORAGE

PROP. CART
STORAGE

EX. TREE
TO REMAIN

EX. SHOPPING
CENTER ASPHALT

PARKING TO REMAIN

PROP.
STRIPING

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROP. CURB

PROP. RE-STRIPING
ADA PARKING STALLS

PROP.
STOP SIGN

18
.9

'

9.
0'

EX. CURB
TO REMAIN

HOME DEPOT
(NOT A PART)

MCDONALD'S
(NOT A PART)

EL POLLO LOCO
(NOT A PART)

KFC
(NOT A PART) TACO BELL

(NOT A PART)

5.
0'

TY
P.

9.
0'

TY
P.

PROP.
STOP SIGN

PROP. CURB

PROP. BUILDING
EXPANSION

17
.1

'

EX. BUILDING
ENVELOPE

14
.5

'

PROP.
CAPONY

PROP. SPHERICAL
BOLLARDS

26
.1

'

PROP.
MONUMENT SIGN

PROP.
MONUMENT SIGN

50
'

12'
UTILITIES EASEMENT

20'
WATER, SEWER, STORM

DRAIN AND PUBLIC UTILITY
AND RIGHTS EASEMENT

10
0'

38.5'

25
.0

'

37
.8

'

59.1'

38
.1

'

105.7'

72.6'

40.7'

58.9'

77.6'

23.4'

26'

5'
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E
EA

SE
M

EN
T

1

25.7' 25.6' 23.9'

23.7' 24.8'
24.0'

27
.4

'

23
.9

'

26
.0

'

25
.9

'

28
.3

'

27
.1

'

46.7'

54.3'

©

R

1000 NICOLLET MALL
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55403

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

Config:

DD
KW

Date No Description

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

12
92

0 
FO

O
TH

IL
L 

BL
VD

SA
N

 F
ER

N
AN

D
O

, C
A 

91
34

2

C1.0

03/18/22 ENTITLEMENT

SITE PLAN

PROPOSED DRIVE UP STRIPING
N.T.S.

PROPERTY LINE

PROP. LOT LINE

CENTER LINE

EASEMENT OR SETBACK LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

ADA PATH OF TRAVEL

VEHICLE PATH OF TRAVEL

PROP. CONCRETE

LEGEND

SITE SUMMARY
SITE AREA: 9.29 AC

EXISTING BUILDING AREA
EXISTING TARGET STORE: 113,312 SF
PROPOSED BUILDING EXPANSION: 1,340 SF
TOTAL PROPOSED TARGET STORE: 114,652 SF

LOT SQUARE FOOTAGE: 404,672 SF
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER: 2514-001-062
SITE ZONING: C-2  (COMMERCIAL)

PD (PRECISE DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY)

USE TYPE: COMMERCIAL

PARKING SUMMARY
REQUIRED PARKING ASSESSED ACROSS ENTIRETY OF SHOPPING CENTER:

COMMERCIAL/RETAIL REQUIRED RATIO = 1 SPACE/ 300 SF

COMMERCIAL/RETAIL EXISTING ON SITE = 127,151 SF
PROPOSED COMMERCIAL EXPANSION =     1,340 SF
TOTAL GROSS FLOOR AREA ON SITE = 128,491 SF

TOTAL REQUIRED PARKING = 428
TOTAL EXISTING PARKING = 415
TOTAL PROPOSED PARKING = 438
TOTAL EXCESS PARKING = 10

ADA STALLS = 16
DRIVE UP STALLS = 24
DRIVE UP LOADING SPACES = 16

OWNER
TARGET CORP.
CONTACT: MATTHEW FLANSBURG
50 SOUTH 10TH STREET, SUITE 400
MINNEAPOLIS, MN, 55403
MATTHEW.FLANSBURG@TARGET.COM

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTE
ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS FOR LANDSCAPE ARE
MINIMAL. ALL LANDSCAPE PLANTING THAT IS REMOVED
IS TO BE REPLACED IN KIND.

M
AC

LA
Y 

ST
.

FOOTHILL BLVD.

AR
R

O
YO

 S
T.

210 FREEWAY

PAC
O

IM
A W

ASH

SITE

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

NORTH

NORTH

ATTACHMENT "C"
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 186 of 212



21

06

14

Drive-Up Canopy

12 Stall Parking Canopy

No Drive Aisle Canopy

*3-dimensional perspectives are not site specific and are intended to convey proposed canopy design 

PARKING STALL CANOPY ELEVATION
3/32" = 1'-0"

1

integrated
drive-up signage 12

'-6
" C

LR
 M

IN

gutter and
downspout

2.5:12 SLOPE2.5:12 SLOPE

canopy mounted
drive-up signs

PARKING STALL CANOPY SECTION
3/32" = 1'-0"

2

12
'-6

" C
LR

 M
IN

2.5:12 SLOPE2.5:12 SLOPE

industrial
overhead fan

PVC tension
membrane roofing

galvanized steel
structure

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 187 of 212



CA_San Fernanado
March_15_2022

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 188 of 212



CA_San Fernanado
March_15_2022

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 189 of 212



ATTACHMENT "D"
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 190 of 212



 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT                117 MACNEIL, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340  (818) 898-1227          WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING OF 
TENTATIVE TRACT MAP No. 2022-001 

BY THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL 

A public hearing on this matter and associated environmental analysis will be conducted by the 
City of San Fernando City Council on: 

DATE:                               August 1, 2022 

TIME:                               6:00 p.m. 

HEARING LOCATION:   City Hall Council Chambers, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 

PROJECT LOCATION:    12920 Foothill Boulevard (APN: 2514-001-062) 

APPLICATION:           Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The proposed Tentative Tract Map No. 2022-001 is for the subdivision of 9.29 acres of land into 
five (5) parcels to allow individual ownership of each parcel at 12920 Foothill Boulevard (APN: 
2514-001-062). The property is zoned Precise Development Overlay (PD) and is located in the 
Home Depot Shopping Center on Foothill. On July 11, 2022, the Planning and Preservation 
Commission reviewed the project and voted 4-0, recommending approval to the City Council.  A 
location map with the project site outlined is provided on the back of this notice. 

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the project was reviewed 
for the appropriate environmental analysis in compliance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Based on that assessment, the project involves the division of 
a single parcel into five (5) separate parcels without any changes to the physical environment of 
the land and could be said with certainty that it will not have a significant effect on the 
environment. As such, the proposed project is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) common sense exemption.    

Interested members of the public may provide verbal comments or written comments 
regarding any aspect of the project during the meeting on this matter.    

Questions or comments may be emailed to Community Development at 
CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org or mail to: City of San Fernando, Community Development 
Department, 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340-2993. 

ATTACHMENT "E"
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 191 of 212

mailto:CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

Project Location Map 

 

N 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 192 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 193 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 194 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
   
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file an update related to the City’s COVID-19 
efforts, including, but not limited to the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement; 
education and outreach efforts; financial assistance programs and the pursuit of funding 
opportunities; COVID-19 related policy initiatives; and related recommendations, as appropriate. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 
 
This report is meant to provide City Council and the public the opportunity to review all items 
related to the City’s response efforts and policy initiatives related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including, but not limited to, financial hardship programs and other potential stimulus funding. 
 
Staff Updates. 
 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (LACDPH) Responding Together at Work and in 
the Community Post Winter Surge Community Monitoring and Continued Response Measures. 
Since reopening on June 15, 2021, LACDPH has updated the Health Officer Order (“Order”) on 
July 16, 2021,  July 22, 2021, July 30, 2021, August 23, 2021, September 17, 2021, September 28, 
2021, December 16, 2021, December 31, 2021, January 5, 2022, January 10, 2022, February 15, 
2022, February 23, 2022, March 3, 2022, March 23, 2022, and most recently on April 21, 2022.  
 
The current Health Officer Order, issued on April 21, 2022, implements the following: 
 
• Continue to require masks in all public transit within the County, such as, commuter trains, 

subways, buses, taxis and ride-shares, and indoor transportation hubs, such as, airport 
terminals, bus, train and subway stations, marina or port stations. It remains the CDC’s 
continuing assessment that at this time an order requiring masking for indoor public transit 
is necessary for public health. This masking requirement will be reassessed when: community 
transmission of COVID-19 in Los Angeles County drops to the Moderate Level OR the CDC’s 
assessment is that an order requiring masking in the transportation corridor is no longer 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 195 of 212



Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

necessary for protection of the public’s health OR within 30 days of this Order, whichever 
occurs firsts; and 
 

• Updates to reopening protocol for Day Camps and overnight/organized children’s camps. 
  
Please visit the City’s website for current Health Orders issued by the LACDPH: 
SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Health-Officer-Order.  
 
Daily COVID-19 Cases and Deaths in the City of San Fernando. 
As of July 26, 2022, the City of San Fernando has experienced a total of 11,489 cases of COVID-
19 and a total of 81 residents have lost their lives to the pandemic.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 -
 2,000
 4,000
 6,000
 8,000

 10,000
 12,000
 14,000

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

CASES

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

DEATHS

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 196 of 212

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#health-officer-order


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
Health Order Enforcement. 
Staff will provide an update on current enforcement efforts during the meeting, if requested. 
 
COVID-19 Vaccine Distribution. 
Los Angeles County residents in have multiple options to register for an appointment to receive 
a free COVID-19 vaccine: 

• California Department of Public Health Online portal: MyTurn.ca.gov 
• LACDPH Online portal: VaccinateLACounty.com  
• Los Angeles Fire Department Online portal: CarbonHealth.com/COVID-19-Vaccines 
• LACDPH Call Center (between 8 am and 8:30 pm): (833) 540-0473 

Since May 13, 2021, all California residents age 12 and older have been eligible to be vaccinated. 
On November 3, 2021, children ages five and older became eligible to receive the Pfizer 
vaccination and on June 23, 2022, all children as young as six-months old became eligible to 
receive the Pfizer and Moderna vaccine. 

On August 14, 2021 and October 21, 2021, a third (booster) dose of the Pfizer, Moderna and 
Johnson & Johnson vaccines, respectively, became available to residents. On March 29, 2022, a 
second booster became available to residents ages 50 and older.  

This information is also available on the City’s website: SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#COVID-19-
Vaccine.  

Per data provided by LACDPH as of July 25, 2022: 19,955 (79.9%) of San Fernando residents over 
the age of six months and older have received at least one dose of the vaccine and 2,482 (95%) 
of San Fernando residents over the age of 65 are fully vaccinated.  

 
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 197 of 212

https://myturn.ca.gov/
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/vaccine/index.htm
https://carbonhealth.com/covid-19-vaccines/los-angeles
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#covid-19-vaccine
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#covid-19-vaccine


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

  
 
San Fernando Recreation Park Vaccination and Testing Site. 
In cooperation with CORE, the City is able to offer a small-scale COVID-19 mobile unit at San 
Fernando Recreation Park. Although the site is significantly scaled down from the Supersite the 
closed in July 2021, there is more flexibility to change days and hours of service as needed, and 
there is a much smaller impact on the surrounding neighborhood and park services. An additional 
service that CORE is providing to the community at this mobile site is information related to 
eligibility for public assistance programs and health screenings (i.e., CalFresh/SNAP, WIC, Medi-
Cal, LIHEAP, and General Relief). 
 
The San Fernando Recreation Park site is currently open Monday through Saturday from 8 am to 
4 pm.  No appointment is necessary for any of the services below.  The daily schedule is as follows: 
 

• Testing – Monday through Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm 
• Vaccine (Pfizer), including Booster Dose for eligible residents – Tuesday, Wednesday, 

Friday, and Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm 
• Public Assistance Program Information – Monday through Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm  
• Wellness Checks – Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday, and Saturday, 8 am to 4 pm  

 
COVID-19 Relief Programs. 
The City Council approved a number of COVID-19 Relief Programs and is working with staff to 
develop additional relief programs. Please visit the City’s website: 
SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Business-Resources for more information on the City’s COVID-19 
Relief Programs. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
American Rescue Plan Act. 
On March 12, 2021, President Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act into law which provides 
fiscal stimulus funding paid directly to state and local governments.  The City’s total allocation is 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 198 of 212

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#business-resources


Receive and File an Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
approximately $5.8 million, which is being distributed in two equal installments of $2.9 million in 
July 2021 and July 2022.  City Council will be considering appropriation of these funds through 
separate City Council action items. 
 
Prior Coronavirus Relief Funds. 
The City received $311, 234 from the Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) through the CARES Act.   City 
Council appropriated these funds to reimburse the City for COVID-19 response costs in FY 2020-
2021.   
 
Community Development Block Grant Funds. 
In FY 2020-2021, the City received $136,000 in special CDBG Coronavirus (CV) funds that were 
used to fund a residential food distribution program and small business PPE program.  In addition, 
in FY 2021-2022, the City allocated $219,128 in CDBG funds for a Business Assistance Program to 
participate in the LACDA small business grant program to quickly roll out the grant opportunity 
to San Fernando businesses.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Los Angeles County Daily COVID-19 Data – as of July 26, 2022 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 199 of 212



ATTACHMENT “A” 

Los Angeles County Daily COVID-19 Data 
 

SOURCE:  
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm; 7/26/21 @ 12 pm. 
 

Graph 1:  
Daily Reported Persons Tested for COVID-19 
7-Day Daily Average: 48,826 
Total Number of People Tested: 12,321,479 
 

 

Graph 2:  
Daily Reported Percent Positive for COVID-
19 
7-Day Daily Average: 15.41% 
 

 
  
Graph 3:  
Daily Number of COVID-19 Hospitalizations 
Current Hospitalizations (7/26/21): 1,280 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 200 of 212

http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm


August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 201 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 202 of 212



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
   
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for 

the 2022 League of California Cities Annual Conference  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Designate a voting Delegate for the League of California Cities (“League”) 2022 Annual 

Conference and Expo (Attachment “A”); 
  

b. Designate up to two Alternate Voting Delegate(s) who may vote in the event that the 
designated Delegate is unable to serve in that capacity; and 
  

c. Authorize the City Clerk to execute and submit the 2022 Annual Conference Voting 
Delegate/Alternate Form to the League (Attachment “B”). 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. The League of California Cities 2022 Annual Conference is, scheduled for September 7-9, 

2022, in Long Beach, California, at the Long Beach Convention Center.  An important part of 
the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting (during General Assembly) on Friday, 
September 9, 2022; at this meeting, the League membership considers and takes action on 
resolutions that establish League policy. In order to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, the 
City Council must designate a Voting Delegate and may also appoint up to two Alternate 
Voting Delegates, one of whom may vote if the designated voting delegate is unable to serve 
in that capacity.  
 

2. On January 18, 2022, the City Council approved appointments to the San Fernando City 
Council Liaison Assignments, which included appointing Mayor Mary Mendoza as the City 
Council Liaison and Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez as the Alternate Liaison to the League 
of California Cities.  
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 203 of 212



Consideration to Designate a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2022 League of California Cities 
Annual Conference 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
3. On June 15, 2022, the City Clerk received a request from the League of California Cities for 

the City Council to take action by September 2, 2022, and designate a Voting Delegate and 
up to two Alternate(s) for the 2022 Annual Conference and Expo at the Long Beach 
Convention Center, on September 7-9, 2022.  

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Each member city has a right to cast one vote on matters pertaining to League policy.  In order 
to vote at the Annual Business Meeting, the City Council must designate a Voting Delegate, and 
may also appoint up to two alternate Voting Delegates, one of whom may vote in the event that 
the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. 

 
Consistent with League bylaws, the City’s Voting Delegate (and up to two Alternate Voting 
Delegates) must be designated by the City Council via either resolution or by City Council action; 
Voting Delegates may not be appointed by individual action of the Mayor or City 
Manager/Administrator alone (Attachment “A”).    
 
The Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) must be registered to attend the conference; they do not 
need to register for the entire conference, they may register for Friday only.  A Voting Delegate 
Card will be issued and may be transferred freely between the Voting Delegate and the 
Alternate(s); however, it may not be transferred to another city official.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The cost to attend the 2022 League of Cities Annual Conference is included in the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Adopted Budget.  The act of designating a Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) will not 
impact the budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council appoint a Voting Delegate and up to two (2) Alternates 
so that the City may participate in and benefit from the development of League policy. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
A. League of California Cities 2022 Annual Conference Voting Delegates/Alternates 
B. 2022 Annual Conference Voting Delegate/Alternate Form  
 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 204 of 212



ATTACHMENT "A"

LEAGUE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
CITIES 

DATE: June 1, 2022 

Council Action Advised by August 31, 2022 

TO: City Managers and City Clerks 

RE: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES 
League of California Cities Annual Conference & Expo - September 7-9, 2022 

Cal Cities 2022 Annual Conference & Expo is scheduled for September 7-9, 2022 in Long 
Beach. An important part of the Annual Conference is the Annual Business Meeting 
(during General Assembly) on Friday, September 9. At this meeting, Cal Cities 
membership considers and acts on resolutions that establish Cal Cities policy. 

In order to vote a t the Annual Business Meeting, your city council must designate a 
voting delegate. Your city may also appoint up to two a lternate voting delegates, one 
of whom may vote if the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that 
capacity. 

Please complete the attached Voting Delegate form and return it to Cal Cities office 
no later than Friday, September 2. This will allow us time to establish voting 
delegate/ alternate records prior to the conference. 

Please view Cal Cities' event and meeting policy in advance of the conference. 

• Action by Council Required. Consistent with Cal Cities bylaws, a city's voting 
delegate and up to two alternates must be designated by the city council. 
When completing the attached Voting Delegate form, p lease attach either a 
copy of the council resolution that reflects the council action taken, or have your 
city c lerk or mayor sign the form affirming that the names provided are those 
selected by the city council. Please note that designating the voting delegate 
and alternates must be done by c ity council action and cannot be 
accomplished by individual action of the mayor or city manager alone. 

• Conference Registration Required. The voting delegate and alternates must be 
registered to attend the conference. They need not register for the entire 
conference; they may register for Friday only. Conference registration will open 
by June l on the Cal Cities website. In order to cast a vote, at least one voter 
must be present at the Business Meeting and in possession of the voting delegate 
card. Voting delegates and alternates need to pick up their conference 
badges before signing in and p icking up the voting delegate card at the Voting 
Delegate Desk. This will enable them to receive the special sticker on their name 
badges that will admit them into the voting area during the Business Meeting. 

~ .. . .. "' .... ' ' . 

1400 K Street, Suite 400. Sacramento, CA 95814 • 916.658.8200 • calcities.org 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 205 of 212



LEAGUE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
CITIES 

• Transferring Voting Card to Non-Designated Individuals Not Allowed. The voting 
delegate card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and 
alternates, but only between the voting delegate and alternates. If the voting 
delegate and alternates find themselves unable to attend the Business Meeting, 
they may not transfer the voting card to another city official. 

• Seating Protocol during General Assembly. At the Business Meeting, individuals 
with the voting card will sit in a separate area. Admission to this area will be limited 
to those individuals w ith a special sticker on their name badge identifying them as 
a voting delegate or alternate. If the voting delegate and alternates wish to sit 
together, they must sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk and obtain the special 
sticker on their badges. 

The Voting Delegate Desk, located in the conference registration area of the Long 
Beach Convention Center, will be open at the following times: Wednesday, September 
7, 8:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m.; Thursday, September 8, 7:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.; and Friday, 
September 9, 7:30 a .m.- 12:30 p.m. The Voting Delegate Desk will a lso be open at the 
Business Meeting on Friday, but w ill be closed during roll calls and voting. 

The voting procedures that will be used at the conference are attached to this memo. 
Please share these procedures and this memo with your council and especially with the 
individuals that your council designates as your city's voting delegate and alternates. 

Once again, thank you for completing the voting delegate and alternate form and 
returning it to Cal Cities office by Friday, September 2. If you have questions, please call 
Darla Yacub at (916) 658-8254. 

Attachments: 
• Annual Conference Voting Procedures 
• Voting Delegate/Alternate Form 

.--."- }?> ·---,.:.1:4 .#~f;/;-~;r~~{~·/:;~~t ·~ . . . r __ ,~:,, ""- ." >. , '1''.' . ~ ~,.: 

·: · ' 1400 K Street, Suite 400. Sacramento, CA 95814 • 916.658.8200 • calcit1es.org . 
- I • '. • ., :_ : • • : - j_.. • - " ' . - I ' ~ '" 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 206 of 212



LEAGUE OF 

CALI FORNIA 
CITIES 

Annual Conference Voting Procedures 

1. One City One Vote. Each member city has a right to cast one vote on 
matters pertaining to Cal Cities policy. 

2. Designating a City Voting Representative. Prior to the Annual Conference, 
each city council may designate a voting delegate and up to two 
alternates; these individuals are identified on the Voting Delegate Form 
provided to the Cal Cities Credentials Committee. 

3. Registering with the Credentials Committee. The voting delegate, or 
alternates, may pick up the city's voting card at the Voting Delegate Desk in 
the conference registration area. Voting delegates and alternates must 
sign in at the Voting Delegate Desk. Here they will receive a special sticker 
on their name badge and thus be admitted to the voting area at the 
Business Meeting . 

4. Signing Initiated Resolution Petitions. Only those individuals who are voting 
delegates (or a lternates), and who have picked up their c ity's voting card 
by providing a signature to the Credentials Committee at the Voting 
Delegate Desk, may sign petitions to initiate a resolution. 

5. Voting. To cast the city's vote, a city official must have in their possession the 
c ity's voting card and be registered w ith the Credentials Committee. The 
voting card may be transferred freely between the voting delegate and 
alternates, but may not be transferred to another city official who is neither 
a voting delegate or alternate. 

6. Voting Area at Business Meeting. At the Business Meeting, individuals with a 
voting card w ill sit in a designated area. Admission will be limited to those 
individuals w ith a special sticker on their name badge identifying them as a 
voting delegate or alternate. 

7. Resolving Disputes. In case of dispute, the Credentials Committee will 
determine the validity of signatures on petitioned resolutions and the right of 
a city officia l to vote at the Business Meeting. 

,,~ ;,,., •~,; • ,._ • ~ ' "\ ' • > ~"'"''"CJ~!"' , ,,. n 

, · 1400 K Str~et, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814 • 916.658.8200 • calcities.org ' ·' · '., 
' -. ' 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 207 of 212



LEAGUE OF 

CALI FORNIA 
CITIES 

II CITY ______ _ 

2022 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
VOTING DELEGATE/ALTERNATE FORM 

Please complete this form and return it to Cal Cities office by Friday, September 2, 
2022. Forms not sent by this deadline may be submitted to the Voting Delegate Desk 
located in the Annual Conference Registration Area. Your city council may designate 
one voting delegate and up to two alternates. 

To vote at the Annual Business Meeting (General Assembly), voting delegates and a lternates 
must be designated by your city council. Please attach the council resolution as proof of 
designation. As an alternative, the Mayor or City Clerk may sign this form, affirming that the 
designation reflects the action taken by the council. 

Please note: Voting delegates and alternates will be seated in a separate area at the Annual 
Business Meeting. Admission to this designated area will be limited to individuals (voting 
delegates and alternates) who are identified with a special sticker on their conference 
badge. This sticker can be obtained only at the Voting Delegate Desk. 

1. VOTING DELEGATE 

Name: ____________ _ 

Title: _____________ _ 

2. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE 3. VOTING DELEGATE - ALTERNATE 

Name: ____________ _ Name: --- ---------
Title: _____________ _ Title: - ------------

ATTACH COUNCIL RESOLUTION DESIGNATING VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATES OR 

ATTEST: I affirm that the information provided reflects action by the city council to 
designate the voting delegate and alternate(s). 

Name: ____________ _ _ _ Email ____________ _ 

Mayor or City Clerk. ________ _ _ Date _____ Phone ______ _ 
(circle one) (signature) 

Please complete and return by Friday, September 2, 2022 to: 
Darla Yacub, Assistant to the Administrative Services Director 
E-mail: dyacub@calc ities.org; Phone: (9 16) 658-8254 

ATTACHMENT "B"
August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 208 of 212



August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 209 of 212



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 210 of 212



AGENDA REPORT

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG

REVIEW:     Finance Director      Deputy City Manager      City Manager

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers

From: Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez

Date: August 1, 2022

Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Develop a Language Access Plan for Monolingual, 
Spanish-speaking Residents

RECOMMENDATION:

I have placed this on the agenda for City Council discussion to develop a Language Access Plan 
for Monolingual, Spanish-speaking Residents (Attachment “A”).

BUDGET IMPACT:

There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item. Additional future costs to be determined
based on City Council direction.

ATTACHMENT:

A. Request to Agendize an Item for City Council Discussion/Consideration

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 211 of 212



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-003.1 (07/2017) |  Page 1 of 1 

REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION
NAME TITLE

ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized.

PRIORITIES 
Is this included in the current FY priorities?

  Yes    No

BUDGET 
Is this a budgeted item?

  Yes    No

FISCAL IMPACT 
Is there a fiscal impact? If yes, indicate amount.

  Yes    No     $
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized.

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include?

  Yes    No
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending.

Celeste Rodriguez Councilmember

Language Access for All City Residents

✔ ✔

The City of San Fernando is home to approximately 23,726 residents, 77.2% of whom have a
primary language other than English, and 38.6% who are foreign-born , according to the U.S.
Census Bureau. Spanish language access has been identified as the highest need with a 92.8% of
residents identifying as Latino/Hispanic. Currently, the city has no formal policy regarding language
access and provides information primarily in English. For example, in-person city council meeting
deliberations are provided only in English, council agendas and attachments are only provided only
in English, and the council meeting Youtube stream is also only provided in English. Without equal
access to information and resources, the city is limited in reaching and engaging many San
Fernando residents.
In order to ensure equal access and increased engagement with city residents on issues important
to them , I request that staff develop a Language Access Plan for monolingual, Spanish-speaking
residents. The Language Access Plan shall include:
The city’s existing best practices for Spanish language access
Opportunities to support resident engagement with existing translation services
Budget estimates for interpretation services for the entirety of council meetings
Budget estimates for translation/interpretation services at city events
Policies that allow requiring contractors who conduct public engagement to provide Spanish

translation
Recommended policies to codify these resources

City Council discussion to develop a Language Access Plan for Monolingual, Spanish-speaking
Residents and provide staff with direction, as applicable.

✔

August 1, 2022 CC Regular Meeting

Page 212 of 212


	08-01-22 CC&SA Agenda
	1 - Minutes
	1 - Cover Sheet & 1
	07-05-22 CC-S Minutes

	2
	2 - FIN_City Warrant (08-01-22)
	FIN_City Warrant (08-01-22) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (08-01-22) ATT A_EXH A

	3
	3 - CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (8-1-22) AR (Combined)
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (8-1-22) AR
	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (8-1-22) ATT A
	RESOLUTION NO. 8170

	CLK_Re-Consideration of Remote Meetings (8-1-22) ATT B
	ATTACHMENT "B"
	Assembly Bill No. 361

	SECTION 1.
	89305.6.

	SEC. 2.
	11133.

	SEC. 3.
	54953.

	SEC. 3.1.
	54953.

	SEC. 4.
	54953.

	SEC. 4.1.
	54953.

	SEC. 5.
	SEC. 6.
	SEC. 7.
	SEC. 8.
	SEC. 9.


	4
	4 - ADM_Use City Seal Kidney Quest 2022 (8-1-22) AR (Combined)
	ADM_Use City Seal Kidney Quest 2022 (8-1-22) AR
	ADM_Use City Seal Kidney Quest 2022 (8-1-22) ATT A
	ADM_Use City Seal Kidney Quest 2022 (8-1-22) ATT B

	5
	5 - PW_NOC Pico Street Improvement Project (8-01-2022) AR (Combined)
	PW_NOC Pico Street Improvement Project (8-01-2022) AR
	PW_NOC Pico Street Improvement Project (8-01-2022) ATT A
	NOTICE OF COMPLETION


	6
	6 - PW_Approve Traffic Engineering Services Agreement (8-1-22) AR (Combined)
	7
	7 - PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22)
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) AR
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT A
	RECITALS
	I.
	II.
	III.
	CONTRACT PRICE
	IV.
	COMPLETION DATE
	V
	FS Contractors, Inc.
	Attn: Angel Fierros
	VII.
	PREVAILING WAGE
	VIII.
	CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION
	IX. MISCELLANEOUS

	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT A EXH A
	EXHIBIT "A"
	EXHIBIT "A"

	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT A EXH B
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT A EXH C
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT B
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT C
	PW_Award of Contract Reservoir 2A Site Improvements Project (8-1-22) ATT D
	DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES


	8
	9
	9 - CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22)
	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) AR
	RECOMMENDATION:
	The project qualifies for exemption to conduct further environmental review under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) based on CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) common sense exemption.  The project involves the division of a single parcel in...

	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT A
	SECTION 1:  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FINDINGS
	This project has been reviewed by the City for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project involves the division of a single parcel into five (5) separate parcels without any changes to the physical environment of the ...
	Evidence: This project has been reviewed by the City for compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project involves the division of a single parcel into five (5) separate parcels without any changes to the physical environme...

	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT A Exh A
	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT A Exhibit A
	EXHIBIT “A”
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	PROJECT NO.: Tentative Tract Map 2022-001
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The subdivision of 9.29 acre parcel within The Home Depot Shopping Center into five (5) parcels to allow individual ownership of each new parcel.
	The following conditions shall be made a part of the approval of the project, and shall be complied with in their entirety, as determined by the Community Development Department:
	1.  Tentative Tract Map Entitlement.  The Tentative Tract Map is granted for the land described in this application and any attachments thereto, as reviewed by the City Council on August 1, 2022, except as herein modified to comply with these Conditio...
	Applicant’s Signature       Date
	Print Name        Date

	ATT A3 - PW Checklist

	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT B
	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT C
	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT D
	CD_Target TTM CC (8-1-22) ATT E

	10
	10 - ADM_Coronavirus Update (8-1-21) (Combined)
	ADM_Coronavirus Update (8-1-21) AR
	ADM_Coronavirus Update (8-1-21) ATT A

	11
	11 - ADM_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (8-1-22) AR (Combined)
	ADM_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (8-1-22) AR
	ADM_Designate Voting Member for League Conference (8-1-22) ATT A&B

	12
	12 - RODRIGUEZ_Discussion Language Access Policy (8-1-22)



